pwec

Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited

(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services
Limited)

Financial Statements
31 December 2012



Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)

Index
31 December 2012

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members

Financial Statements

Consolidated income statement

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated statement of changes in stockholders' equity
Consolidated statement of cash flows

Company income statement

Company statement of comprehensive income

Company statement of financial position

Company statement of changes in stockholders’ equity
Company statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Page

12-13
14-110



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sagicor Investments Jatnaica Limited set out
on pages 1 to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company statement of financial position as at

31 December 2012 and the consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Sagicor
Investments Jamaica Limited as at 31 December 2012, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Jamaican Companies Act.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those
records, and the accompanying financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the information
required by the Jamaican Companies Act, in the manner so required.

/?/omkrla«ﬂeéo

Chartered Accountants
1 March 2013
Kingston, Jamaica
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Note
Net interest Income and Other Revenue
Interest income from securities
Interest income from loans and leases
Other interest income
Total interest income
Interest expense 6
Net interest income
Fees and commission income 7
Net trading income 8
Other revenue 9
Operating Expenses
Team member costs 10
Impairment charges/(reversals) 11
QOccupancy costs
Other expenses 12
Profit before Taxation
Taxation 13
Net Profit 14
EARNINGS PER STOCK UNIT
Basic 16
Diluted 16

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
5,401,488 5,136,317
895,901 992,666
4,067 1,097
6,301,456 6,130,080
(3.284,422) (3,189,990)
3,017,034 2,940,090
332,830 392,434
715,615 656,285
50,905 32,475
1,099,350 1,081,194
4,116,384 4,021,284
1,121,711 1,003,253
16,658 (28,773)
151,234 126,522
791,648 610,980
2,081,251 1,711,982
2,035,133 2,309,302
(582,457) (588,646)
1,452,676 1,720,666
$2.63 $3.12
$2.61 $3.09
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Net Profit
Other comprehensive income -

Available-for-sale investments -
Unrealised (losses)/gains on available-for-sale
investments

Gains reclassified and reported in profit

Cash flow hedge -
Gains reclassified and reported in profit

Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Totai Comprehensive income

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
1,452,676 1,720,656
(362,835) 649,908
(277,503) (390,990)
(640,338) 258,918
(39,897) (7,762)
(680,235) 251,156
772,441 1,971,812
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Note
ASSETS

Cash and balances due from other financial institutions 17
Cash reserve at Bank of Jamaica 18
Trading securities 19
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 20
Investment securities 21
Derivative financial instruments 22
Loans, net of provision for credit losses 24
Lease receivables 25
Pledged assets 26
Due from related companies
Income tax recoverable
Intangible assets 28
Property, plant and equipment 29
Post-employment benefit assets 30
Other assets N

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
4,085,785 2,227,484
735,494 519,732
4,495,432 610,940
1,783,514 991,904
56,464,666 55,377,164
4,253,104 839,420
9,330,364 9,242,365
59,159 15,515
3,943,434 7,831,016
48,496 8,527
5478 5,478
807,576 781,300
309,739 168,691
35,729 28,473
1,876,214 1,565,927
88,234,184 80,203,936
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(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 4

Note
LIABILITIES
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Customer deposits and other accounts
Structured products 32
Due to banks and other financial institutions 33
Derivative financial instruments 22
Due to related companies
Income tax payable
Deferred income tax liabilities 34
Post-employment benefit obiigations 30
Other iiabilities 35
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 36
Stock options reserve 37
Retained earnings reserve 38
Reserve fund 39
Loan loss reserve 40
Capitai redemption reserve 41
Fair value reserve 42
Retained earnings 15

Approved for Issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013 and signed on Its behalf by:

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
57,595,878 54,612,131
11,215,194 10,699,897
854,100 274913
468,746 764,018
4,310,566 700,600
105,512 52,361
108,418 139,590
176,379 525,326
58,035 52,602
1,317,871 523,149
76,210,699 68,244,577
3,195,565 3,185,565
58,089 51,793
2,036,596 1,536,596
299,613 301,043
251,733 249,479
1,264,324 1,264,324
253,365 933,600
4,664,200 4,426,959
12,023,485 11,959,359
88,234,184 80,203,936

P\ %

Richard O. Byies Director Donovan H. Perkins

Director



SeP'E20'ZL  002'P99'v  G9E'EST PZEPOZ'L EELM5T £19'662 965'0E0°Z  680'8S GOG'SEL'E

{206'v22)  (296'b2L) - e g - . - -

e zZoL's c e (zoL's) e e - .

95e0tL = e e 95¢£'0L e e S -

s (0:5'060) e e = {oet'L) 000°'00S c e

862’9 c e = s e C 962'9 -

W'ziL 8:0'26t'V  (5€2°089) s e = e - =

(cez'os9) - (s£Z'089) e = - - - -

9/0°Z6b't  9.9'TSKL - e - - - - -

6SE'6S6'LL  6S6'9ZY'y  ODY'EE6 veE'VOZ'L  6LP'6PT £p0°'LOE 966'0ES'L  £62°16 G9G'GHL'E

(ves'v0l)  (bRE'POL) e - - - - - -

e (594'90L) e S §9.'901 e S s S

18Z'L = = e Lez'L e 0 - S

- (628'¥+9) = Z68'219 - 120'Ze e e e

88+'02 e e e c e e 88¥'0Z -

S e e = s - e (zor'z2) 2ov'ce

9cT'or = = e e g s - 9eT'or

ZLB'LLE'L  9G9'0ZL'F  9SH'IST - = - - - -

aGL'15z s 951'16Z = - - - - e

959'0zL'L  9¢9'02L'F - g - S - - -

9zy'yZo'0lL  1ER'TOL'Y  bYPEED ZLr'Lee EEPLPL 910’692 965'086's  Z9L'ES £08'9Z1L'E

000,$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.$ 000.%

12101 mm_.__:._mm SAIRSEY aAlesey MBSy pund IAIBSTY PALSIY _u—_nwu
pauelay anjeA Ned  uopdwepay SSOT anlasey sBujuseg suondo aleys

lenden ueon paujeioy aeys

114
or

6E°8E
it

3 4
or

I'8E
1

9€

QION

ZL0Z sequedaq |E Je aouejeg
spuapwQ

Syl pue
Buuoisinosd ueot AuojeinBar usamiaq Juawnsnipy

sjusunsnipe Jay\o pue uogenjeass Lousung
SIS (Wou))s0) SI3ysues)

swalos uondo yo0)s sakojdws

2102 Jo} 8lwoou| snsuaysidwod 2101
awoou) ansuayidwod U0

woud 18N

LLOZ J9quiedag LE Je aduejeg

SpuspIMg

S4dl pue
Buoisioud ueo) Aojenba ussmisy Juswisnipy

sjuswisnipe Jay1o pue UoHENJRAB) Aduaimy)
saAesa) (Wog)/o) sIvjsuel)

awayds uondo yaojs asAoidwg

suondo pasipsexs Jo Jaysuel)|

SHUN 20)S AEUIpIO JO SNSS|

LLOZ J0) Swoou aasuayeiduod 1ej0L
awoou) aasuayardwed Jagio

woud 19N

$10Z Aenuep | je aouejeg

g abed

(po1E2IpUl 9SIMIBYIO SSBUN SJB||OP UBDdIBWE Ul passaldx3)

Z10Z 19quasda LE popusd Jed)

Aunbg siepjoyyo0ls u sebuey) J0 JuaWwale)S pajepljosuo)
(po)wIT S921AL9S JeIoUBULY URAGqUIEY) UBd AlIBWIOS])
pajwi] edlewer sjuawilsanu| J0oibeg



Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net profit

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense 6
Income tax charge 13
Fair value (gains)/loss on trading securities
Impairment charges 1"
Amortisation of premiums/discounts
Amortisation of intangible assets 28
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 29

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of hedging reserve

Changes in post-employment benefits and
pension recharge

Stock options and grants expense
Foreign exchange gains on foreign assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
Statutory reserves at Bank of Jamaica
Trading securities
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans
Lease receivables
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Structured products
Customer deposits and other accounts
Other assels
Other liabilities

interest received

Interest paid
Taxation
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

2012 2011
$'000 $°000
1,452,676 1,720,656
(6,301,456) (6,130,080)
3,284,422 3,189,990
582,457 588,646
(208,192) 603
16,658 (4,098)
(5,953) (144,635)
27,133 40,373
50,410 44,586
(149) (141)
(59.846) (11,643)
(1,823) (13,739)
6,295 64,242
(415,431) {10,792)
(1,572,799) (666,032)
(207,119) (59,087)
(3,536,483) (561,918)
(301,853) 72,410
3,014,111 (7,540,449)
173,056 (6,403)
518,959 292,028
(46,532) 3,501
(749,354) 4,593,071
611,125 (212,692)
95,031 1,632,397
(550,014) (808,286)
823,939 125,426
(1,727.933) (3.236,034)
6,310,770 6,207,840
(3,184,400) (3,175,499)
(385,917) (165,538)
1,012,520 (369,231)




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited

(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary stock units
Redemption of redeemable preference shares

Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions — long term

Repayment of amounts due to banks and other financial institutions
—long term

Due from related parties

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivaients
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Note

28

37

43

23

2012 2011
$°000 $7000
1,012,520 {369,231)
(53,409) {36,215)
(191,521) (51,000)
212 141
(244,718) (87,074)
- 18,483
- (612,852)

93,108 183,147
{360,498) (258,389)
13,193 56,420
(724,967) (704,884)
(979,164) (1,318,075)
249,366 (10,637)
38,004 (1,785,017)
2,085,495 3,870,512
2,123,499 2,085,495




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note

Net Interest Income and Other Revenue

Interest income from securities

Interest income from loans

Other interest income

Total interest income

Interest expense 6

Net interest income

Fees and commission income 7

Net trading income 8

Other revenue 9
Operating Expenses

Team member costs 10

Impairment {reversal), net 11

Occupancy costs

Other expenses 12
Profit before Taxation
Taxation 13

Net Profit 14

2012 2011
$°000 $'000
4,772,272 4,673,480
193,052 222,887
2,211 624
4,967,535 4,896,991
(2,891,586)  (2.815,661)
2,075,949 2,081,330
278,664 341,102
469,639 489,781
20,119 8,627
768,422 839,510
2,844,371 2,920,840
746,053 674,881
(10,277) (54,041)
55,977 45,513
478,023 346,487
1,269,776 1,012,840
1,574,595 1,808,000
(429,257) (499,782)
1,145,338 1,408,218




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Net Profit
Other comprehensive income -

Available-for-sale investments -

Unrealised (losses)/gains on available-for-sale
investments

Gains reclassified and reported in profit

Cash flow hedge -
Gains reclassified and reported in profit
Total other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Total Comprehensive Income

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
1,145,338 1,408,218
(303,862) 537,049
(276,315) (319,634)
(580,177) 217,415
{39,897) {7.762)
(620,074) 209,653
525,264 1,617,871




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2012
(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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ASSETS
Cash and balances due from other financial institutions

Trading securities

Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Investment securities

Derivative financial instruments
Investment in subsidiaries

Loans, net of provision for credit losses
Pledged assets

Due from related companies

intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Customer accounts

Structured products

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial instruments

Due to related companies

Income tax payable

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other liabilities

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital

Stock oplions reserve
Loan loss reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Fair value reserve
Retained eamings

(Ohwvan 4

Note

17
19
20
21
2

24
26

28
29
Ky

32
33
22

35

36
37
40
41
a2

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
2,967,036 1,717,979
4,495,432 610,940
2,357,012 308,074
48,442,927 48,834,393
4,253,104 839,420
2,512,900 2,512,900
2,217,601 2,289,038
3,657,204 7,831,016
47,888 8,527
206,936 169,810
99,815 121,831
1,573,631 1,324,931
72,831,486 66,568,859
56,839,727 64,630,650
171,152 250,241
854,100 274,913
241,464 464,329
4,310,566 700,600
150,122 99,409
30,568 128,398
100,570 442,650
989,124 248,627
63,687,393 57,239,817
3,195,565 3,195,565
58,089 51,793
89,870 90,739
1,264,324 1,264,324
117,266 737,340
4,418,979 3,989,281
9,144,093 9,329,042
72,831,486 66,568,859

Approved for Issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013 and signed on its behalf by:

). =

Richard O. Byles

Director

Donovan H. Perkins

Director



Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited

(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note

Balance at 1 January 2011

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for 2011

1ssue of ordinary stock units 36
Transfer of exercised oplions

Employee stock option scheme 37
Transfer o capital redemption reserve 41

Currency revaluation and other
adjustments

Adjustment between regulatory loan
provisioning and IFRS 40

Dividends 43
Balance at 31 December 2011

Net profit

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for 2012
Employee stock oplion scheme 37

Currency revaluation and other
adjustrnents

Adjustment between regulatory loan
provisioning and IFRS 40

Dividends 44
Balance at 31 December 2012

Share Loan Capital

Share Options Loss Redemption FairValue Retained
Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $:000 $°000 $'000
3,126,867 53,767 20,295 651,472 527,687 3,968,195 8,348,283
- - - - - 1,408,218 1,408,218
- - - - 209,653 - 209,653
- - - - 209,653 1,408,218 1,617,871
46,236 - - - - - 46,236
22.462 (22,462) - - - - -
- 20,488 - - - - 20,488
- - - 612,852 - (612,852) -
- - 1,048 - - - 1,048
- - 69,396 - - (69,3986) -
- - - - - (704,884) (704,884)
3,195,565 51,793 90,739 1,264,324 737,340 3,989,281 9,329,042
- - - - - 1,145338 1,145,338
- - - - {620,074} (620,074)
- - - - (620,074} 1,145,338 525,264
- 6,296 - - - - 6,296
- - 8458 - - - 8,458
- - (9,327) - - 9,327 -
. . - . - (724,967) (724,967)
3,195,565 58,089 89,870 1,264,324 117,266 4,418,979 9,144,093




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net profit

Adjustments for;
Interest income
Interest expense 6
Income tax charge 13
Fair value (gains)losses on trading securities
Impairment charges 11
Amortisation of premiums/discounts
Amortisation of intangible assets 28
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 29

Loss/{gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of hedging reserve

Stock options and grants expense

Foreign exchange (gains)/ losses on foreign assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
Trading securities
Securities purchased under agreements to resell
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Loans
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Structured products
Customer accounts
Other assets
Other liabilities

Interest received

Interest paid

Taxation paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

2012 201
$7000 $'000
1,145,338 1,408,218
(4,967,535) (4,896,991)
2,891,586 2,815,661
429,257 499,782
(208,192) 603
(10,277) (29,366)
33,395 (128,224)
16,282 8,455
35,206 30,455
26 n
(59,848) (11,643)
6,296 64,242
(245,033) 140
(933,497) (236,745)
{3,536,483) (561,918)
(313,477) 91,661
4,681,560 (5,063,355)
173,056 (12,453)
321,910 477,261
(1,003,468) 4,593,629
611,125 (212,692)
(77.272) (148,156)
(474,280) (720,103)
740,481 72,604
189,655 (1.720,267)
4,942,892 5,023,487
(2,770,618) (2,803,626)
(322,587) (124,324)
2,039,342 375,270




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Company Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of intangible assets 28
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary stock units
Redemption of redeemable preference shares

Due to parent company and fellow subsidiaries

Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions —
long term

Repayment of amounts due to banks and other financiai institutions —
long term

Dividends paid 43
Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Nel increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 23

2012 2011
$'000 $7000
2,039,342 375,270
(53.408) (20,963)
(13,253) (41,308)
37 77
(66,624) (62,194)

S 18,483
- (612,852)

11,352 38,328
73,108 50,500
(273,370) (156,032)
(724,967) (704,884)
(913,877) (1,366,457)
202,948 {6,703)
1,261,789 {1,060,084)
929,274 1,989,358
2,191,063 929,274
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Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1.

Identification, Regulation and Licence

Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited (the company) is incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica. The company is
listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE). The principal activities of the company are the provision of
investment, fund and unit trust management services and development banking. The company is a licensed
securities dealer and has primary dealer status from the Bank of Jamaica {(BOJ) and is also a member of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange.The registered office of the company is located at 60 Knutsford Boulevard, Kingston 5.

The company changed its name on 19 November 2012 and has obtained the necessary approval from
stockholders and regulators to re-name the company from Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited to Sagicor
Investments Jamaica Limited.

The company's subsidiaries, which are all incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica, are as follows:

Financial
Subsidiaries Principal Activities Holding Year End
Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited (formerly
PanCaribbeanBank Limited Commercial banking 100% 31 December
Pan Caribbean Asset Management Limited Inactive 100% 31 December
Manufacturers Investments Limited Inactive 100% 31 December
Pan Caribbean Investments Limited Inactive 100% 31 December
Pan Caribbean Securities Limited Inactive 100% 31 December

The parent company, Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited is incorporated in Jamaica.
The ultimate parent company, Sagicor Financial Corporation (Sagicor) is incorporated in Barbados.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assels and liabilities {including derivatives) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of ceriain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4,

Amendment to published standard effective in current year that is relevant to the Group’s operations

+ Amendments to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ on transfers of assets {effective 1 July
2011). These amendments arise from the |ASB’s review of off-balance-sheet activities. The
amendments will promote transparency in the reporting of transfer transactions and improve users'’
understanding of the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect of those risks
on an entity's financial position, particularly those involving securitisation of financial assets. There was
na impact in the current year from adoption of this amendment.
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but the Group has not early
adopted them.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments: Classification and measurement (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2015) was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts of
IAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is
to be made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a debt instrument and both the
objective of the entity's business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and
the asset's contractuai cash flows represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only
‘basic loan features’). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value. Equity instruments that are held
for trading will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an
irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value
gains and losses through other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There is to be no
recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent a return
on investment.

Financial liabilities. Entities with financial liabilities designated FVTPL recognise changes in the fair
value due to changes in the liability's credit risk directly in other comprehensive income (OCY). There
is no subsequent recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss, but accumulated gains or losses
may be transferred within equity.

While adoption of IFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013, earlier adoption is permitted for financial
assets without adopting the requirements for financial liabilities. The Group is considering the
implications of the standard, the impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation {continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group {(continued)

Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive income.
The main change resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items
presented in Other comprehensive income (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially
reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not
address which items are presented in OCI. This amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The Group will apply this amendment from 1 January 2013,
however, all the items in OCI are currently reclassifiable to profit or loss.

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’ was amended in June 2011. The impact on the Group will be as
follows: to eliminate the corridor approach and recognise ali actuarial gains and losses in OCI as
they occur; to immediateiy recognise all past service costs; and to replace interest cost and
expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability (asset). This amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments.

IFRS 10, 'Consolidated Financial Statements’, {effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013). IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in /AS 27,
‘Consolidated and Separate Financiai Statements’, and SIC-12, ‘Consolidation - Special Purpose
Entities’. 1AS 27 (Revised) now renamed ‘Separate Financial Statements’. IFRS 10 builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated financial statements. The standard provides additional
guidance lo assist in determining control where this is difficult to assess. This new standard might
impact the entities that a group consoiidates as its subsidiaries. The Group is assessing the impact
of future adoption of the standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 12, 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’, (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013). IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informalion that helps financial statement
users lo evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity's interests in
subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. The Group is
assessing the impact of future adoption of the standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurement', (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013). IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRS. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards. The requirements are similar to those in /FRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
but apply to all assets and liabilities measured at fair value, not just financial assets and liabilities.
The Group is assessing the impact of future adoption of the standard on its financial statements.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(b)

()

Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred. The accounting policies of subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment.

Segment reporting
Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is the Board of Directors.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency transiation

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency').

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is the Group's
presentaticn currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions or that require seitlement, in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency
are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition; non-monetary items in a
foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. These rates represent the weighted average rates at which the
company trades in foreign currency.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of foreign currency transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as
gains or losses from qualifying cash flow hedging instruments.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income statement are presented net in the
income statement within the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in other comprehensive income within the
corresponding item.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments, such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial instruments, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in other comprehensive income.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

()

®

Interest income and expenses
Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all interest-bearing instruments
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Jamaican banking regulations stipulate that, where collection of interest income is considered doubtful or
payment is outstanding for 90 days or more, interest should be taken into account on a cash basis. IFRS
require that when loans become doubtful of collection, they are written down to their recoverable amounts
and interest income is thereafter recognised based on the rate of interest that was used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount. The difference between the
regulatory and IFRS bases of interest recognition was assessed to be immaterial.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income are recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Fees and commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third
party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory
and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-apportionate
basis. Asset management fees related to investment funds are recognised rateably over the period in
which the service is provided. Performance linked fees or fee components are recognised when the
performance criteria are fulfilied.

{g) Net trading income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related income or
expense and dividends for financial assets and liabilities for instruments (including derivatives) held for
trading. Net trading income also includes foreign exchange on translated assets and liabilities and net
gains and loss on investment securities.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

U]

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. in this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
90 days maturity from the date of acquisition including cash and non-restricted balances with BOJ,
balances due from other banks, investment securities, reverse repurchase agreements, repurchase
agreements with financial institutions and short term amounts due to banks and other financial institutions.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

)

(k)

Sale and repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under agreements to resell {reverse repurchase agreements) and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) are treated as collateralised financing transactions and
are recorded at the amount at which the securities were acquired or sold plus accrued interest.

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements {‘repos’) are reclassified in the financial statements as
pledged assets when the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or re-pledge the collateral;
the counterparty liability is included in amounts due to other banks, deposits from banks, other deposits or
deposits due to customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (‘reverse
repos’) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using
the effective interest method. Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Financial assets

The Group classffies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets, and available-for-sale financial assets.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedging instruments.

{ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services
directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the cash consideration to originate or purchase the loan including
any transaction costs.

(i) Held-to-maturity
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Were the Group to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the
entire category would be re-classified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the cash consideration including any transaction costs.

(iv) Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices. Available-for-sale investments are initially recognised at fair value,
which is the cash consideration including any transaction costs.
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(k)

Financial assets (continued)

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at the trade date — the date on
which the Group commits the purchase or sell the asset. Loans and receivables are recognised when
cash is advanced to the borrowers.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair vaiue of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired.
At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. However, interest calculated using the effective
interest method and foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as available for
sale are recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. Unquoted
securities are recorded initially at cost. They are subsequently measured at fair value. Where fair value
cannot be measured reliably they are measured at cost less impairment.

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to received cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset held for trading out of the
held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of seliing it in the near
term. Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held
for trading category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near-term. In addition, the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification. Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals
of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective
interest rates prospectively.



Page 23

Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2

Summary of Signlificant Accounting Policies {Continued)

M

Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their vaiue from the price of underlying items such as
equities, bonds, interest rates, foreign exchange, credit spreads, commodities or other indices.
Derivatives enable users to increase, reduce or alter exposure to credit or market risk. The Group
transacts derivatives for three primary purposes: to create risk management solutions for customers, for
proprietary trading purposes, and to manage its own exposure to credit and market risk.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into, and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value at each statement of financial
position. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates its interest rate swap as a cash fiow hedge. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in stockholders’ equity are recycled to the income statement in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss. They are recorded in the revenue or expense lines in which
associated with the related hedged item is reported.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in stockholders’ equity at that time remains in
stockholders’ equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in stockholders’ equity is immediately transferred to the income statement within
net trading income.
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

{m) Impairment of financial assets

(i

Assels carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assels that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the company determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. if a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial
asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling
the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the
basis of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Group’s grading process that
considers asset type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other
relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for
groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according
to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are
estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the Group and historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Group, Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(m) impalrment of financial assets (continued)

0

(ii)

(iii)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be directionally
consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period {for example, changes in
unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the Group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

For non-performing and impaired loans the accrual of interest income based on the original terms of the
loan is discontinued. Jamaican banking regulations require that interest on non-performing loans be
taken into account on the cash basis. IFRS require the increase in the present value of impaired loans
due to the passage of time to be reported as interest income. The difference between the Jamaican
regulatory basis and IFRS was assessed to be immaterial.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such
loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
loss has been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement in
impairment charge for credit losses.

Statutory and other regulatory loan loss reserve requirements that are different from these amounts are
dealt with in a non-distributable loan loss reserve as an adjustment to retained earnings.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss - is removed from stockholders' equity and recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This
may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once
the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original effective interest
rate as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due.
Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment
assessmenlt, calculated using the loan’s original effective interest rate.



Page 26

Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012

(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

(n}) Leases

(i)

(i)

As Lessee

The leases entered into by the Group are all operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases are charged to occupancy costs in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the pericd of the lease.

When an operaling lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.

As Lessor

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the
term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic
rate of return.

(o} Intangible assets

(i

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates is included in investments in associates. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity soid.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to operating
segment.

Computer software

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group and that will probable generate economic benefits exceeding the
cost beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes
beyond their original specifications is recognised as capital improvement and added to the original
cost of the software. Computer software costs are amortised using the straight-line method over
their useful lives.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(P

C))

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to other operating expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the siraight-line basis at annual rates that wili write off the carrying value of
each asset over the period of its expected useful life. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
assel’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount. These are included in other expenses in the income statement,

Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement when the expenditure is incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabie. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash fiows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(1

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations

The Group participates in two post-employment plans, the assets of which are generally heid in
separate trustee-administered funds. The pension plans are funded by payments from employees and
by the Group, taking into account the recommendations of qualified actuaries. The Group has both
defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The asset or liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of the defined
benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of
financial position date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined
benefit obligation are charged or credited to income over the employees’ expected average
remaining working lives.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in staff costs, unless the changes to the pension
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current or prior periods.

For the defined contribution plan, the Group pays contributions to a privately administered pension
insurance plan on a contractual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations cnce the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are charged to the income statement in the period
to which they relate.
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i} Other post-retirement obligations

The Group provides post-retirement health care benefits to their retirees. The entitliement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the
completion of a minimum service period. The expecled costs of these benefils are accrued over the
period of employment using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments, and changes in actuarial
assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined
benefit obligation, are charged or credited to income over the expected average remaining working
lives of the related employees. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
actuaries.

(i} Annual leave

Employee entitliements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the year end date.

(iv) Productivity bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for productivity bonuses as profit-sharing, paid to
employees based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company’s
stockholders. The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where past practice
has created a constructive obligation.

(v) Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan.

Share options

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. At
each statement of financial position date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. it recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to over the remaining
vesting period. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs, plus the fair
value of the options are credited to share capital when the options are exercised.

Share grants
The market value of the shares issued at grant date is recognised as an expense when granted.

Share purchase plan
Employees of the company are also eligible to purchase shares in the company under a share
purchase plan.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(r)

(s)

®

(u)

v)

Empioyee benefits (continued)

(vi) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonsirably committed to either
terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without the
possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits faling due more than twelve months after the statement of financial
position date are discounted to present value.

Grants
Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Grants relating to intangible assets are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset, and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis by way of a reduced amortisation change.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setlle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected lo be required to setile the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense,

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently are stated at amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The
dividends on these preference shares are recognised in the income statement as interest expense.

Deposits
Deposits are recognised initially at the nominal amount when funds are received. Deposils are
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(w)

()

v)

(@)

Structured products

Structured products are recognised initially at the nominal amount when funds are received. Derivatives
are separately accounted for at fair value through the income statement (Note 2(1)). The non-derivative
elements are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Share capital

(i) Share issuance cost
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
stockholders’ equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

(i) Mandatorily redeemable preference shares are classified as liabilities (Note 2(u)).

(i} Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in stockholders’ equity in the period in which they are
approved by the company’s stockholders.

Dividends for the year that are declared after the statement of financial position date are dealt with in the
subsequent events note.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include cash resources, irading
securities, securities purchased under agreements to resell, investment securities, loans, lease
receivables, other assets excluding property, plant and equipment, deposits by customers and al! other
liabilities.

The fair values of the Group and company's financial instruments are discussed in Note 44.

Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets

on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and income
arising thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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3. Financial Risk Management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date
information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes
in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board has established working groups for managing and monitoring risks, as
follows:

(i)  Asset, Liability, Credit and Investment Committee

The Asset, Liability, Credit and Investment Committee is responsible for the development of credit and
investment policies and standards that conform to applicable law, regulations and corporate policies;
approving credit proposal requests; reviewing and approving exceptions to core credit and investment
policies that may represent unusual risk; and ensuring that aggregate credit risk exposure are within the
Group's risk taking capacity. All credit facilities require the approval of at least 2 members of this
Committee. This Committee is also responsible for formulating and monitoring investment portfolios and
investment strategies for the Group. In addition, this Committee is responsible for approval and monitoring
of appropriate trading limits, reports and compliance controls to ensure that the mandate is properly
followed. The Committee’s decisions receive final ratification at Board Meetings.

(i)  Audit and Compliance Committee

The Audit and Compliance Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framewoark in
relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Audit and Compliance Committee is assisted in its oversight
role by the Internal Audit Department and the Risk Management and Compliance Unit. Internal Audit
Department undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Audit and Compliance Commitiee. The Risk Management and
Compliance Unit ensures adherence to internal policies and procedures, and regulatory rules and
guidelines,

(i) The Treasury Division
The Treasury Division is responsible for managing the Group's financial assets and liabilities and the
overall financial structure. It is also primarily responsible for managing and maintaining appropriate funding
and liquidity of the Group.

(iv) Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee is responsible to monitor macroeconomic conditions in directing and
overseeing credit and market-related risk management activities of the Group.
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3.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The disclosures provided are based on the Group’s and company’s investment portfolio at 31 December
2012. As described in Note 48, the Group and the company participated in the National Debt Exchange
(NDX) which resulted in significant changes in the Group’s and company’s investment portfolio in February
2013.

The most important types of risks faced by the Group are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational
risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.

(a) Creditrisk
The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that its customers or counterparties will
cause a financial loss for the Group by failing to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk is an
important risk for the Group’s business; management therefore carefuily monitors its exposure to credit
risk. Credit exposures arise principally in lending and investment aclivities. The Group structures the
levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to a single
counterparty or groups of related counterparties and to geographical and industry segments.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair
values, as recorded in the statement of financial position.

Credit-related commitment risks arise from guarantees and letters of credit that may require payment on
behalf of customers. Such payments are collected from customers based on the terms of the letters of
credit, guarantees or undertakings. They expose the Group to similar risks to loans and the same control
policies and processes mitigate these.

Credit review process

The Group has established a credit quality review process involving regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers and other counterparties to meet interest and capital repayment obligations.

(i) Loans and leases
The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal ratings.
Clients of the Group are segmented into five rating classes. The Group’s rating scale, which is shown
below, reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class.
Group’s internal rating scale:

Rating grades  Description of the grade

1 Standard

2 Potential problem credit
3 Sub-standard

4 Doubtful

5 Loss
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and leases {continued)

The Group’s loan portfolio is managed by focusing efforts on good quality loan that is achieved through
a thorough screening and credit analysis process; these loans are appropriately priced to refiect the risk
associated with the expected cash fiows and the collateral provided. Credit risk is managed primarily by
reviewing and monitoring the financial status of counterparties and the underlying collateral. The levels
of credit risk undertaken is structured by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments; these are monitored on a periodic basis
and subject to annual or more frequent reviews.  Counterparty limits are established by the use of a
credit classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to
regular revision. The credit quality review process allows the Group to assess the potential loss as a
result of the risk to which it is exposed and take corrective action.

(i) Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing in marketable securities, with counterparties that
have acceptable credit quality and Government of Jamaica securities. As a result of the Central
Securities Depository (CSD), all domestic Government of Jamaica securities have been dematerialised
which has significantly reduced the settlement risk. The credit exposure is managed by establishing
exposure limits after an internal analysis and approval. Actual exposures against limits are monitored
frequently. It is also the Group’s policy to obtain control or take possession of securities purchased
under agreements to resell. Management assesses the market value of the underlying securities that
collaterise the transactions and takes the appropriate margins required. Management actively seeks to
transact with counterparties that demonstrate an ability to meet its obligations.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are established regarding the acceptability of specific types of collateral.

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

Loans and leases — Cash and other near cash securities, morigages over commercial and residential
properties, charges over general business assels such as premises, equipment, inventory, accounts
receivable, stocks and other securities and motor vehicles. Fair value of properties held as collateral is
mainly based on obtained valuations from third parties.

Securities lending and reverse repurchase transactions — cash or Government of Jamaica securities.

The Group also seeks to obtain guarantees from parent companies for loans to their subsidiaries and
personal guarantees for loans to private companies.

Management monitors the market value of collateral held and may request additional collateral in
accordance with the underlying agreement.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
Impairment

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or
interest are overdue by more than 90 days or there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of
counterparties, credit rating downgrades or infringement of the original terms of the contract.

The Group addresses impairment assessment by reviewing all loans and leases with risk ratings of 3 and
above.

Individually assessed allowances are provided for financial assets based on a review conducted at least
annually or more regularly when individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually
assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance-sheet date on a case-
by-case basis, and are applied to all accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held and
the anticipated receipts for that individual account.

Commitments and guarantees

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments and
contingent liabilities. Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the statement of financial
position, they do contain credit risk and are therefore part of the overall risk of the Group.

The internal rating systems described above focus more on credit-quality mapping from the inception of
lending activities. In contrast, impairment provisions are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for
losses that have been incurred at the statement of financial position date based on objective evidence of
impairment. Due to the different methodologies applied, the amount of incurred credit losses provided for in
the financial statements are usually lower than the amount determined from the expecled loss model that is
used for internal operational management and banking regulation purposes.

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment exists,
based on the following criteria set out by the Group:

Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower:

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The impairment provision shown in the statement of financial position at year-end is derived from the
internal rating grades of 3 and above. However, the majority of the impairment provision comes from the last
rating class (loss).
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)
Group’s and company’s rating (continued)

The tables below show the Group’s and company’s gross loans and leases (excluding interest receivable)
and the associated impairment provision for each internal rating class:

Group's and company's rating

The Group
2012 2011
Loans and impairment Loans and Impairment
leases provision leases provision
$'000 $000 $°000 $°000
Standard 8,663,076 - 8,580,087 -
Potential problem credit 273082 - 83.480 _
Sub-standard 140,004 43,699 303,314 46,162
Doubtful 65,259 13,837 135,110 34,673
Loss 391,284 182,390 313,003 170,144
9,632,705 239,926 9,415,984 250,979
The Company
2012 2011
Loans and Impairment Loans and Impairment
leases provision ieases provision
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Standard 1,922,312 - 1,904,010 -
Potential problem credit 108,956 - 64,814 -
Sub-standard 4,915 1,532 165,451 13,614
Doubtful - - 80,728 13,929
Loss 259,833 102,386 165,055 80,576

2,206,016 103,918 2,380,058 108,119
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{a) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collaterai held or other credit enhancements

Maximum exposure

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $’'000 $'000 $'000
Credit risk exposures relating to assets
on the statement of financial position
are as follows:
Cash and bank balances due from other
financial institutions {excluding cash
on hand) 3.861,148 2,064,285 2,967,036 1,717,979
Cash reserve at Bank of Jamaica 735,494 519,732 - -
Trading securities 4,445410 610,940 4,445410 610,940
Securities purchased under agreements
to resell 1,783,514 991,904 2,357,012 308,074
Investment securities 56,390,042 55,303,470 48,383,657 48,775,124
Derivative financial instruments 4,253,104 839,420 4,253,104 839,420
Loans, net of provision for credit losses 9,330,364 9,242,365 2,217,601 2,289,038
Lease receivables 59,159 15,515 - -
Pledged assets 3,943,434 7,831,016 3,657,204 7,831,016
Due to related parties 48,496 8,527 47,888 8,527
Other assets 59,387 206,019 50,770 164,236
84,909,552 77,633,193 68,379,682 62,544,354
Credit risk exposures relaling to items
not on the statement of financial
position are as follows:
Loan commitments 1,520,549 696,338 922,852 266,998
Guarantees and letters of credit 833,447 1,078,739 344,390 613,374
2,353,996 1,775,077 1,267,242 880,372

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group and company at
31 December 2012 and 2011, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
The exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial
position.
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3. Financia! Risk Management {Continued)
{a) Credit risk {continued)
Loans and leases

(i} Credit quality of loans and leases are summarised as follows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Neither past due nor impaired -

Standard 6,195,705 6,961,847 1,227,665 1,657,957
Past due but not impaired 2,740,453 1,702,620 803,603 310,867
Impaired 596,547 761,517 264,748 411,234
Gross 9,532,705 9,415,984 2,296,016 2,380,058
Less: Provision for credit losses {239,926) (250,979) (103,918) (108,119)
Net 9,292,779 9,165,005 2,192,098 2,271,939

Loans and leases become past due when payments are not received on contractual repayment dates.
The majority of past due loans are not considered impaired.

(i) Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans and leases:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Less than 30 days 628,366 1,225,853 167,804 308,094
31 to 60 days 1,675,961 395,040 532,391 984
61 to 90 days 436,126 81,727 103,408 1,789
2,740,453 1,702,620 803,603 310,867

The Group and the company hold adequate collzateral for past due but not impaired loans and leases.

There are no significant financial assets other than loans and leases that are past due.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Loans and leases {continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Financial assets — individually impaired

Financial assets that are individually impaired before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held are as follows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Loans and leases 596,547 751,517 264,748 411,234

There are no financial assets other than loans and leases that were individually impaired.
Renegotiated loans and leases

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements, approved external management
plans, modification and deferral of payments. Following restructuring, a previously overdue
customer account is reset to a normal status and managed together with other similar accounts.
Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria, which, in the judgment of
management, indicate that payment, will most likely continue. These policies are kept under
continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly applied to term leans.

Repossessed collateral

The Group and the company can obtain assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.
Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds used to reduce the
outstanding indebtedness.

The Group is in the process of repassessing collateral totalling $13,300,000 (2011 — $8,800,000).
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)
Credit exposure
(i) Loans and leases

The following table summarises the Group's and company’s credit exposure for loans and leases at
their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors:

The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Agriculture, fishing and mining 1,415,453 1,229,995 101,21 127,552
Construction and real estate 1,506,634 1,503,362 313,581 398,071
Distribution 2,438,196 1,691,766 983,768 441,532
Manufacturing 86,772 179,515 25912 37.325
Personal . 771,127 653,923 180,277 209,242
Professional and other services 1,523,018 2,351,894 463,977 846,633
Tourism and entertainment 1,507,238 1,764,268 206,212 307,641
Transportation, storage and communication 284,268 41,261 21,078 12,062
9,532,706 9,415,984 2,296,016 2,380,058

Less: Provision for cradit losses (239,926) (250,979) (103,918) (108,119)
9,292,780 9,165,005 2,192,098 2,271,932
Interest receivable 96,743 92,875 25,503 17,099
9,389,523 9,267,880 2,217,601 2,289,038

The majority of loans and leases are extended to customers in Jamaica.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk {continued)
Credit exposure {continued)
(i) Investments

The following table summarises the Group’s and company’s credit exposure for investments at their
carrying amounts, as categorised by issuer:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Govemment of Jamaica 51,805,317 51,015,793 46,614,615 45,574,495
Bank of Jamaica 116,413 605,388 35,427 505,045
Corporate 7,754,916 8,142,887 4,922,329 7,155,890
Financial institutions 5,921,307 4816,082 6,494,443 4,132,546
Other sovereign debt 964,445 157,178 776,470 157,178

66,562,398 64,737,328 58,843,284 57,525,154

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence
may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

The Group is exposed to daily calls on their available cash resources from overnight placement of funds,
maturing placement of funds, loan draw-downs and guarantees. The Group does not maintain cash
resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum level of investment of maturing
funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of
maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of inter-bank and other borrowing
facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

Liquidity risk management process

The Group’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Group and monitored by the
Treasury Division, includes:

(i) Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of
expected cash flows and the availability of collateral which could be used to secure funding if
required;

(i) Maintaining assets than can readily be liquidated (T-Bills, BoJ CDs and secured secondary market
repos) as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

(i) Maintaining stand-by credit lines;
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management process (continued)
(iv) Optimising cash returns on investment;
(v) Short-term liabilities are segmented and analysed to monitor and reduce concentrations.

(vi) Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements.
The most important of these is to maintain limits on the ratio of net liquid assets to customer liabilities;
and

(vii) Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week
and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected collection
date of the financial assels.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assels and liabilities is
fundamental to the management of the Group. It is unusual for companies ever to be completely matched
since business lransacted is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of loss.

The malurities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.
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3.

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial Risk Management {Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities cash flows

The tables below present the contractual maturi
cash flows) of the Group's and company's finan

As at 31 December 2012;

Financial Assets
Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions

Cash reserves at Bank of Jamaica
Trading securities

Securities purchased under
agreements lo resell

Investment securities and pledged
assels

Dertivative financial instruments
Loans, net provision for credit losses
Lease receivables

Other

Financial assets (contractual
maturity dates)

Financial Liabilities

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Customer deposils and other
accounts

Oue to banks and other financial
insitutions

Structured products
Derivative financial instruments

Other

Financial liabilities (contractual
maturity dates)

Net Liquidity Gap
Cumulative Liquidity Gap

ties of undiscounted cash flows (both interest and principal
cial assets and liabilities based on the remaining period.

The Group

Within 1 2to3 41012 2to5 Over$5
Month Months Months Years Years Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
4,085,815 - - - - 4,085,815
735,494 - - - - 735,494
1,027 511,595 1,499,550 2,391,647 8,146 4,411,965
1,027,651 236,670 529,120 - - 1,793,441
250,329 6,932,230 4,597,288 44,937,080 27,955,729 84,672,656
1,521 501,708 1,474,367 2,360,525 - 4,338,121
2,742,299 1,227,702 2,142,667 3,922,731 762,195 10,797,594
3.251 6,503 29,262 20,119 - 59,135
55,007 - 32,426 - - 87,433
8,902,394 9.416,408 10,304,680 63,632,102 28,726,070 110,981,654
28,726,438 19,894,652 9,371,943 31,718 - 58,024,749
6,401,673 1,715,491 1,993,314 481,446 1,378.264 11,970,188
5,298 38,747 186,112 309,608 1,601 541,364
1,521 511,596 1,498,532 2,383,501 - 4,395,150
97,641 27,346 61,997 790,042 - 977.026
1,054,483 114,709 16,000 - - 1,185,192
36,287,054 22,302,541 13,127,808 3,996,311 1,379,865 77,093,669
{27,384,660) (12,886.1 33) {2,823,218) 48,635,791 27,346,205 33,887,985

(27,384,660) {40,270,793) (43,094,011 ) 6,541,780 33,887,985
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3.

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities cash flows (continued)

As at 31 December 2011:

Financial Assets

Cash and balances due from
other financial institutions

Cash reserves at Bank of
Jamaica

Trading securities

Securifies purchased under
agreements to resell

Investment securities and
pledged assels

Derivative financial instruments

Loans, net provision for credit
losses

Lease receivables

Other

Financial assets {contractual
maturity dates)

Financial Liabilities

Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase

Customer deposits and other
accounts

Due lo banks and other
financial institutions

Siructured products
Derivative financia! instruments

Other

Financial liabilities
{contractual maturity
dates)

Net Liquidity Gap

Cumulative Liquidity Gap

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The Group

Within 1 2to3 4t012 2to5 Over5
Month Months Months Years Years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,228,462 - - - - 2,228,462
519,732 - - - - §18,732
- - 17,036 476,334 283,049 776,419
753,079 6,860 249,235 - - 1,009,174
802,656 2,437,016 3,888,365 47,697,192 38,967,964 93,793,193
20,575 - 399,794 430,400 25,521 876,290
2,366,726 1,288,092 2,905,190 2,920,741 930,679 10,411,428
702 1,350 12,186 6,576 - 20,814
214,328 - - - - 214,328
6,906,260 3,733,318 7,471,806 51,531,243 40,207,213 109,849,840
33,930,905 14,854,499 6,262,276 11,058 - 55,058,838
4,814,676 1,065,877 3,450,887 717,880 1,285,874 11,335,194
75,138 20,814 231,910 488,323 42,409 858,604
- - - 91,105 273,009 364,114
111,499 - 338,296 225,184 25,521 700,600
575,500 - - - - 575,500
39,507,718 15,941,190 10,283,569 1,533,560 1,626,813 68,892,850
(32,601,458) (12,207 ,872) {2.811,763) 49,997,683 38,580,400 40,956,990

(32,601,458)  (44,809,330)  (47,621,093) 2.376,590 40,956,990
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3.

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities cash flows {(continued)

As at 31 December 2012:
Financial Assets

Cash and balances due from
ather financial inslitutions

Trading securities

Securities purchased under
agreements 1o resell

Investment securities and
pledged assels

Derivative financial
instruments
Loans, net provision for credit
losses

Other

Financial assets (contractual

maturity dates)
Financial Liabilities

Securities sold under
agreemenis to repurchase

Cuslomer accounts

Due to banks and other
financial institutions

Derivative financial
instrumenis

Structured products

Other

Financial Babilities
(contractual maturity
dates)

Net Liquidity Gap

Cumulative Liquidity Gap

Financial Risk Management {Continued)

The Company

Within 1 2to3 4t012 2105 Over 5
Month Months Months Years Years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,967,040 - - - - 2,967,040
1,027 511,595 1,499,550 2,391,647 8,146 4,411,965
1,617,247 226,536 533,853 - - 2,377,636
122,178 5,552,765 3,408,759 38.561,438 23,919,444 71,564,584
1,521 501,708 1,474,367 2,360,525 - 4,338,121
872,756 271,440 626,736 589,978 217,282 2,578,192
66,231 - 32,426 - - 98,657
5,648,000 7,064,044 7,575,691 43,903,588 24,144,872 88,336,195
27,950,683 19,894,652 9,353,461 3716 - 57,230,512
7,252 13,641 50,425 109,781 - 181,099
125 26,285 128,504 107,306 185 262,415
1,521 511,596 1,498,532 2,383,501 - 4,395,150
97,641 27,346 61,997 790,042 - 977,026
899,298 73.629 16,000 - - 988,927
28,956,520 20,547,158 11,108,919 3,422,346 185 64,035,129
{23,308.520)  (13,483,115) (3,533,228) 40,481,242 24,144,687 24,301,066
(23,308,520) (36,791,635  (40,324,863) 156,379 24,301,066 -
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3.

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities cash flows (continued)

As at 31 December 2011;
Financial Assets

Cash and balances due from
other financial institutions

Trading securities

Securities purchased under
agreements (0 resell

Investiment securities and
pledged assels

Derivalive financial instruments

Loans, net provision for credit
losses

Other

Financial assets (contractual

maturity dates)
Financial Liabilitles

Securilies sold under
agreements to repurchase

Cuslomer accounts

Due to banks and other
financial institutions

Derivalive financial instruments
Structured products
Other

Financial liabilities
{contractual maturity
dates)

Net Liquidity Gap
Cumulative Liquidity Gap

Financial Risk Management {Continued)

The Company

Within 1 2103 4t012 2to5 Over 5
Month Months Months Years Years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,717,979 - - - . 1,717,979
- - 17,036 476,334 283,049 776,419
77,364 - 249,235 - - 326,599
685,441 1,943,427 3,442,924 43,027,955 34,595,467 83,695,214
20,575 - 399,794 430,400 25,521 876,290
496,836 349,811 1,047,834 408,993 267,192 2,570,666
172,763 - - - - 172,763
3,170,958 2,293,238 5,156,823 44,343,682 35,171,229 90,135,930
33,946,180 14,854,499 6,265,621 11,058 - 55,077,358
13,054 15,454 61,060 177.182 - 266,750
68,525 5,559 166,438 244177 4,720 489,419
111,499 - 338,396 225,184 25,521 700,600
- - - 91,105 273,009 364,114
348,036 - - - - 348,036
34,487,294 14,875,512 6,831,515 748,706 303,250 57,246,277
{31,316,336) (12,582,274) (1,674,692) 43,594,976 34,867,979 32,889,653

{31,316,336) (43,898,610) (45,573,302) (1,978,326} 32.889,653

Source of funding available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding lcan commitments include
cash, central bank balances, items in the course of collection, investments, loans and advances to banks
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of business, a proporiion of customer loans
will be extended beyond their due dates. The Group is also able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by
selling securities and accessing additional funding sources from local and overseas financial institutions.
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3.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{c)

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rate,
credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is monitored and reviewed by the
Risk Management and periodically by the Risk Management Committee. The company monitors
economic reports, local and international market conditions. Key market risk strategies include active
monitoring of the market, portfolio sensitivity analysis, trading and position limits and liability management.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk occurs when the Group takes on open position in a currency. To control this
exchange risk the Risk Management Committee has approved limits for net open position in each
currency for both intra-day and overnight position. This limit may vary from time to time as
determined by Risk Management Unit assessment of the volatility in exchange rates and with the
approval of the Risk Management Commiitee.

The Group also has transactional currency exposure. This exposure arises from having financial
assels in currencies other than those in which financial liabilities are expected to settle. The Group
ensures that its net exposure is kept at approved levels.

In addition, the Group has utilise derivatives to mitigate currency risk exposure as specified in Note
22,
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{c) Market risk {continued)
{i) Currency risk {(continued)

Concentrations of currency risk

The tables below summarise the Group’s and company's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
risk at 31 December.

The Group
Jamaican$ Uss GBP CANS EURO Total
J$'000 J$'000 J3$'000 J$'000 J$'000 J$'000
At 31 December 2012:
Assets
Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions and 390,622 3,225,497 230,033 96,824 142,809 4,085,785
Cash reserves at Bank of Jamaica 280,883 419,776 22,594 12,241 - 735,494
Trading securilies 424,212 20,874 - - 4,050,346 4,495,432
Securilies purchased under
agreements lo resell 1,042,201 556,174 160,214 - 24,925 1,783,514
nvestment securities and pledged
assets 32,303,289 27,361,398 464,653 - 278,760 60,408,100
Derivative financial instruments - 4,253,104 - - - 4,253,104
Loans, net of provision for credit
losses 2,109,802 7,220,562 - - - 9,330,364
Lease receivables 59,154 5 - - - 59,159
Other 3,055,261 27,924 6 7 34 3,083,232
Total assets 39,665,424 43,085,314 877,500 109,072 4,496,874 88,234,184
Liabilities and Stockholders’' Equity
Securities sold under agreements o
repurchase 26,225,012 30,378,355 922,337 - 70,174 57,595,878
Custlomer deposils and other
accounts 2,104,692 8,919,558 41,422 142,685 6837 11,215,194
Struclured products . 854,100 - - - 854,100
Derivative financial instruments - 43,915 - - 4,266,651 4,310,566
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 426,997 41,749 - - - 468,746
Other liabilities 934,570 819,358 6,056 4,232 1,999 1,766,215
Stockholders’ equity 12,023,485 - - - - 12,023,485
Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity 41,714,756 41,057,035 969,815 146,917 4,345,661 88,234,184
Net statement of financial position  (2,049,332) 2,028,279 (92,315) (37.845) 151,213 -

Credit commitments 1,345,201 1,008,794 - - - 2,353,995
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3. Financial Risk Management {(Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

Concentrations of currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011;

Assets

Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions and

Cash reserves al Bank of Jamaica
Trading securilies

Securities purchased under agreements
to resell

Investment securities and pledged
assels

Derivative financial instruments

Loans, net of provision for credit losses
Lease receivables

Other

Total assels

Liabilitles and Stockholders’ Equity

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Cuslomer depoasits and other accounts
Structured products

Derivative financial instrumenis

Due to banks amd other financial
insfitutions

Other fiabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Net statement of financial position
Credit commitments

The Group
Jamaican$ uUss GBP CANS EURO Total
J$000 J$000 J$'000 J$000 J$'000 J$'000
324,452 1,400,578 298,000 83,228 121,226 2,227,484
266.768 231,437 9,795 11,732 - 519,732
460,033 150,907 - - - 610,940
55,578 912,496 6,886 - 16,944 991,904
36,251,383 25,807,844 413,352 - 735,601 63,208,180
- 839,420 - - - 839,420
2,501,584 6,740,781 - - - 9,242,365
15,510 5 - - - 15,515
2,406,415 141,979 - 2 - 2,548,396
42,281,723 36,225,447 728,033 94,962 873,771 80,203,236
29,132,140 24,676,595 763,507 - 39888 54612131
2,841,699 7,563,549 61,672 130,396 2,581 10,599,897
- 274,913 - - - 274,913
- 27,710 - - 672,890 700,600
703,630 60,326 - - 62 764,018
1,193,443 95,950 2,742 514 369 1,293,018
11,959,359 - - - - 11,959,359
45,830,271 32,699,043 827,921 130,910 715,791 80,203,936
{3.548,548) 3,526,404 {99,888} (35,948) 157,980 -
883,332 891,745 - - - 1,775,077
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3. Financiai Risk Management {Continued)

(c)

Market risk {continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

Concentrations of currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2012:

Assets

Cash and balances due from
other financial institutions

Trading securities

Securities purchased under
agreements to resell

Investment securities and
pledged assels

Derivative financial instruments

Loans, net of provision for credit
losses

Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’
Equity

Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase

Customer accounts

Structured products

Due to banks and other financial
institutions

Devrivative financial instrurments

Other

Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity
Net statement of financial
position

Credit commitments

The Company
Jamaican$ uss GBP CAS$ EURO Total
J$'000 J$'000 J$'000 J$'000 J$000 J$'000
98,592  2,579,1% 166,666 49 122,536  2,967.036
424,213 20,874 - - 4,050,345 4,495,432
1,251,878 927.912 152,297 - 24925 2,357,012
20,195,270 22,161,448 464,654 - 278,759 52,100,131
- 4,253,104 - - - 4,253,104
652,408 1,565,193 - - - 2,217,601
4,413,412 27,724 - - 34 4441170
36,035,773 31,535,446 783,619 49 4,476,599 72,831,486
26,243,378 29,603,836 922,337 - 70,174 56,839,727
171,152 - - - - 171,152
- 854,100 - - - 854,100
199,715 41,749 - - - 241,464
- 43,915 - - 4,266,651 4,310,566
545,688 723,104 - - 1,592 1,270,384
9,144,093 - - - - 9,144,093
36,304,026 31,266,706 922,337 - 4338417 72,831,486
(268,253) 268,740 (138,718) 49 138,182 -
999,118 268,124 - - - 1,267,242
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3.

Financiai Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
{i} Currency risk (continued)

Concentrations of currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2011:
Assets

Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions

Trading securities

Securities purchased under agreements
to resell

Investment securities and pledged
assels

Derivative financial instruments

Loans, net of provision for credil losses
Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Customer accounts
Structured products

Due to banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Other liabilities

Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Net statement of financial position
Credit commitments

The Company
Jamaican$ uss GBP EURO Total
J$'000 J$'000 J$'000 J$'000 J$'000
507,834 879,487 212,118 118,540 1,717,979
460,032 150,907 - - 610,939
55,283 252,791 - - 308,074
32,453,792 23,062,664 413,352 735,601 56,665,409
- 839,420 - - 839,420
1,015,558 1,273,480 - - 2,289,038
4,029,827 108,173 - - 4,138,000
38,522,326 26,566,922 625,470 854,141 66,568,859
29,150,576 24,676,678 763,507 39,889 54,630,650
250,241 - - - 250,241
- 274913 - - 274,913
403,941 60,326 - 62 464,329
- 27,710 - 672,890 700,600
884,293 34,621 170 - 919,084
9,329,042 - - - 9,329,042
40,018,093 25,074,248 763,677 712,841 66,568,859
{1,495,767) 1,492,674 (138,207} 141,300 -
497.231 383,141 - - 880,372




Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
(Formerly Pan Caribbean Financial Services Limited)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2012
(Expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 52

3.

Financial Risk Management {Continued)

(¢) Market risk {continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables indicate the currencies to which the Group and company had significant exposure
on its monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The change in currency rate below

represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The

sensitivity analysis represents outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end based on a change in foreign currency rates as noted below. The
sensitivity analysis on pre-tax profit is based on foreign currency denominated monetary items at the
year end. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact
on market risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in variable, variables had to be on an

individual basis.

Currency:
uspo
EUR
GBP
usD
EUR
GBP

Currency:
uso
EUR
GBP
usD
EUR
GBP

The Group
Change in Effect on Pre- Change in Effect on Pre-tax
Currency Rate tax Profit Currency Rate Profit
2012 2012 2011 2011
% $'000 % $'000
+1 20,389 +1 35,156
+1 1,528 +1 1,580
+1 (925) +1 (979)
-10 (203,886) -1 (35,156)
-10 {(15,277) -1 {1.580)
-10 9,245 -1 979
The Company
Change in Effect on Pre- Change in  Effect on Pre-tax
Currency Rate tax Profit Currency Rate Profit
2012 2012 2011 2011
% $'000 % $000
+1 2,062 +1 14,948
+1 1,381 +1 1,413
+1 (1,387) +1 (1.382)
-10 (20,621) -1 (14,948)
-10 (13,818) -1 {1.413)
-10 13,872 -1 1,382
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3.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
{ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

Floating rate instruments expose the Group to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate
instruments expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group’s interest rate risk resides primarily in its Jamaican dollar liability portfolio. Accordingly, the
Group manages interest rate risk by holding a high proportion of variable rate Jamaican dollar
securities linked to Treasury bill yields. There is a growing proportion of the Group's portfolio tied to
their prime lending rate which is reviewed periodically based on market conditions. The interest rate
risk policy also requires it to manage the maturities of interest bearing financial assets and interest
bearing financial liabilities. Macaulay and Effective Duration analysis is also conducted on the financial
assets of the Group to determine the impact of changes in interest rates. Macaulay duration is the
weighted average term to maturity of a bond's cash flows, while Effective duration is the change in the
value of the portfolio in response to a change in interest rates. The Duration Gap is also assessed.
This is the difference between the Macaulay duration of assets and the duration of liabilities. It
measures how well the average timings of cash inflows are matched to cash outflows.

The following tables summarise the Group’s and the company's exposure to interest rate risk. It
includes the Group and company financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier
of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

In addition, the Group and company has an interest rate swap on which interest rate risk arises as set
out in Note 22.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk {continued)
(i) Interest rate risk {continued)

The Group
Non-
Within 1 2t03 4to12 2105 Over 5 Interest
Month Months Months Years Years Bearing Total
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 31 December 2012;
Assets
Cash and balances due from
other financial institutions 3,861,147 - - - - 224,638 4,085,785
Cash reserve al Bank of
Jamaica 735,494 - - - - - 735,494
Trading securilies - - - 4,026,553 18,624 449,255 4,495,432
Securities purchased under
agresments to resell 1,024,638 232,802 520,704 - - 5370 1,783,514
Investment securities and
pledged assets 3,293,395 25,735,067 2,383,269 21,078,226 6,540,959 1.377,184 60,408,100
Derivative financial instruments - - - 3,933,704 - 319,400 4,253,104
Loans, net of provision for
credit losses 1,746,790 763,024 1724619 3,128512 1,871,199 96,020 9,330,364
Leases receivables - - - 58,434 - 725 59,159
Other - - - - - 3,083,232 3,083,232
Total assels 10,661,464 26,730,893 4,628,792 32225429 8,431,782 5555824 88,234,184
Liabilities
Securilies sold under
agreements to repurchase 28,486,179 19,583,818 9,043,450 29,460 - 452971 57,595,878
Customer deposits and other
accounts 6,398,394 1,689,104 1,907,618 420,575 737,732 61,771 11,215,194
Structured producis - - - 528,953 - 325,147 854,100
Derivative financial instruments - - - 3,998,369 - 312,197 4,310,566
Due to banks and other financial
inslitutions - 32 32,000 384,216 51,077 1,421 468,746
Other - - - - - 1,766,215 1,766,215
Total liabilities 34,884,573 21,272,954 10,983,068 5,361,573 788,809 2,919,722 76,210,699
Total interest repricing gap  (24,223,109) 5457939 (6,354,276} 26,863,856 7,642,973 2,636,102 12,023,485
Cumulative repricing gap (24,223,109) (18,765,170} {25.119,446) 1,744,410 9,387,383 12,023,485
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{c) Market risk (continued)
(i} Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group
Within 1 2to3 4to 12 Non-Interest
Month Months Months 2to 5 Years Over 5Years Bearing Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 31 December 2011:
Assets
Cash and balances due from
olher financial instilutions 2,139,652 - - - - 87,832 2,227,484
Cash reserve at Bank of
Jamaica 519,732 - - - - - 519,732
Trading securities - - - - 200,876 410,064 610,940
Securities purchased under
agreements o resell 752,807 6,859 226,980 - - 5,258 991,904
Invesiment securities and
pledged assels 748.453 22,713,598 421,239 25,009,555 12,917,059 1,398,276 63,208,180
Derivative financial
instruments 244,228 - - - - 595,192 839,420
Loans, net of provision for
credit losses 1,710,764 471,978 2,675,624 2,747,059 1,544,319 92,621 9,242 365
Leases receivables - - - 15,261 - 254 15,515
Cther - - - - - 2,548,396 2,548,396
Total assets 6,115,636 23,192,435 3,323,843 27,771,875 14,662,254 5,137.893 80,203,936
Liabilities
Securities sold under
agreements 10 repurchase 33,600,653 14,607,593 6,056,655 9,955 - 328,275 5461213
Customer deposits and other
accounls 4,812,665 1,044,156 3,369,539 611,857 688,353 73,327 10,599,897
Structured products - - - - - 274913 274,913
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 700,600 700,600
Due lo banks and other
financial institulions 5,270 3,244 48,256 485,295 125,648 96,305 764,018
Other - - - - . 1,293,018 1,293,018
Total liabilities 38,427,588 15,654,993 9,474,450 1,107,107 814,001 2,766,438 68,244,577

Total interest repricing gap  (32,311,952) 7,537,442 (6.150,607) 26,664,768 13,848,253 2,371,455 11,959.359

Cumulative repricing gap {32,311.952) (24,774.510) (30,925,117}  (4,260,349) 9,587,904 11,950,359
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (continued)

The Company
Within 1 2103 41012 205 Non-Interest
Month Months Months Years Over5 Years Bearing Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
At 31 December 2012:
Assets
Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions 2,967,036 - . - - - 2,967,036
Trading securlies - - . 4,026,553 19,624 449,255 4,495,432
Secwities purchased under
agreaments lo resell 1.606.021 224017 520,705 - - 5,369 2,357,012
Investment securities and pledged
assets 3.239,396 23,290,944 2,383,269 16,715,712 5,261,334 1,209.476 52,1003
Derivative financial insruments - - - 3,933,704 - 314,400 4,248,104
Loans, net of provision for
credit lossas 584,045 50,600 713,108 601,176 243.169 25,503 2217601
Other - - - - - 4,441,170 4,441,170
Total assets 8,396,498 23,566,461 3617082 25277145 5,524,127 6,445,173 72,826,486
Liabilitles
Securities sold under agreements 10
repurchase 27,736,004 19,583,818 9,043,450 29,460 - 446,995 56,839.727
Cuslomer accounts 4,265 13,563 49,382 100,966 - 2,976 171,152
Swructured products - - - 528,953 - 325,147 854,100
Bue to banks and other financial
institutions 5,842 - 32,000 201,183 1,077 1,362 241,464
Denvative financial instruments - - - 3.998.369 - 312,197 4,310,566
Other - - - - - 1,270,384 1,270,384
Total liabiliies 27,746,111 19,597,381 9,124,832 4,858,931 1,077 2,359,061 63,687,393
Total interest repricing gap (19,349,613) 3,969,080 (5.507,750) 20,418,214 5,523,050 4,086,112 9,139.093

Cumulative repricing gap {19.349.613) (15,380,533} (20.888,283) (470.069) 5,052,981 9.139.093
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk {(continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk {continued)

The Company
Within 1 2t03 41012 2105 Non-interest
Month Months Months Years OverS5 Years Bearing Totat
$'000 $000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At 31 December 2011:
Assets
Cash and balances due from
other financial institutions 1,717,979 - - - - s 1,717,979
Trading securilies - - - - 200,876 410,064 610,940
Securities purchased under
agreements to reselt 76,817 - 226,980 - - 4,276 308,073
Investment securities and
pledged assels 522,454 21,511,630 421,239 22,201,338 10,677,513 1,241,235 56,665,409
Derivative financial instruments 244,228 - - - - 595,192 839,420
Loans, net of provision for
credit losses 353,958 86.214 974,961 640,445 216,362 17,099 2,289,039
Other - - - - - 4,137,999 4,137,999
Total assets 2,915,436 21.597.844 1,623,180 22,931,783 11,094,751 6,405,865 66.568.859
Liabilities
Secwrities sold under
agreements to repurchase 33,628,173 14,607,593 6,056,655 9,955 - 328,274 54,630,650
Customer accounts 12,219 14,121 54,790 164,310 - 4,79 250,241
Structured products - - - - - 274,913 274913
Due to banks and other
financial institutions 5775 192 48,000 300,986 13,148 96,228 464,320
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 700,600 700,600
Other - - - - - 919,085 919,085
Total liabilities 33.646.167 14.621.916 6.159.445 475.251 13,148 2.323.891 57.239.818

Total Interest repricing gap (30,730,731} 6,975,928 {4.536.265) 22,456,532 11.081.603 4.081,974 9,329.041
Cumulative repricing gap (30,730,731)  (23,754.803)  (28.291,068) {5.834.536) 5,247,067 9.329.041
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk {continued)
The tables below summarise the effective interest rate by major currencies for financial instruments of
the Group and the company.

The Group The Company
J us CAN GBP EURO J us CAN GBP EURO
5 $ $ £ € $ $ $ £ €
% % % % % % % % % %
2012
Assets
Cash and balances due from other financial
institutions on 0.01 - 0.12 0.05 0.01 0.01 - 0.12 0.05
Cash reserves at Bank of Jamaica - .01 035 0.05 = - - S S o
Trading securities - 11.00 - - 5.00 - 11.00 - - 5.00
Securities purchased under agreements to
resell 4.86 402 - 2.70 3.00 471 4.02 - 270 3.00
Invesiment securities — debt securities 9.14 715 - 7.50 105 9.05 7.48 - 7.50 10.50
Loans, nel of provision for credit losses 13.01 873 - - - 12.67 8.82 - - =
Lease receivables 16.00 - - - . - - 5 & -
Liabilitles
Securilies sold under agreemenis (o repurchase 8.13 376 - 264 220 6.13 3.76 - 264 220
Customer deposits and other accounts 1.50 1.36 117 0.76 024 A - o S 0
Structured products - 68% - - - - 6.8% - - &
Due to banks and other financial instituions 9.21 4.94 - - - 9.41 6.00 - = S
2011
Assets
Cash and balances due from other financial
institutions 0.22 0,13 - 0.01 0.05 0.22 0.13 - 0.01 0.05
Cash reserves at Bank of Jamaica - 0.0 035 0.05 - - - - = -
Trading securities 8.75 8.14 - - - 8.75 8.14 - - -
Securities purchased under agreements o
resell - 4,40 . 3.00 3.28 4.02 483 - o S
Investment securities — debt securilies 9.39 7.79 - 7.50 10.27 9.65 7.57 - 7.50 10.32
Loans, net of provision for ¢redit losses 16.09 10.04 - - - 13.87 9.07 - - o
Lease receivables 18.31 - 5 = - - . . - -
Liabllities
Securities sold under agreemenits to repurchase 592 3.66 - 285 1.92 592 366 . 285 192
Customer deposils and other accounts 3.64 2.96 1.20 1.79 0.05 3.83 - o . -

Due to banks and other financial institulions 9.41 732 - - - 9.62 732 - & =
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(c) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk {(continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The following tables indicate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, on the Group's and company’s income statement and stockholders’
equity.

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on pre-tax
profit or loss based on floating rate debt securities and financial liabilities. The sensitivity of stockholders’
equity is calculated by revaluing fixed rate available-for-sale financial assets for the effects of the
assumed changes in interest rates. The correlation of a number of variables will have an impact on
market risk. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear and are assessed

individually.
The Group
2012 2011
Effect on Effect on
Effect on Other Effecton Other
Prestax components Pre-tax components of
Profit of Equity Profit Equity
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Change In basis points
J§-100, USE - 50 (2011 J$ -100, USS -50)  (271,477) 529,347  (218,789) 753,395
J§ +400, US$ +250 (2011 - J§ +100, US$
+50) 1,149,154 (1,470,312) 218,789 (783,088)
The Company
2012 2011
Effect on Effect on
Effect on Other  Effecton Other
Pre-tax components Pre-tax components of
Profit of Equity Profit Equity
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Change in basis points

J§ -100, US$ - 50 (2011 J$-100, USS -50) (258,738) 481,302  (208,329) 653,932
J§ +400, USS +250 (2011 - J$ +100, USS
+50) 1,098,194 (1,302,921) 208,329 {644,399)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face
of statements of financial position, are:

() To comply with the capital requirements set by the regulators of the financiai markets where the
entities within the Group operate;

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for stockholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

(iil) To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored monthly by the Group’s management
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Financial Services Commission (FSC),
the Bank of Jamaica (BOJ), Basel Il and the Risk Management and Compliance Unit. The required
information is filed with the respective Regulatory Authorities at stipulated intervals.

The BOJ and the FSC require each regulated entity to:

()  Hold the minimum level of the regulatory capital; and
(i)  Maintain a minimum ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets.

The Group’s regulatory capital is divided into two tiers:

(i)  Tier 1 capital: share capital, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained
earnings. The book value of goodwill is deducted in arriving at Tier 1 capital; and

(i)  Tier 2 capital: qualifying subordinated loan capital, collective impairment allowances and revaluation
on property, plant and equipment.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of five risk weights classified according
to the nature of each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A
similar treatment is adopted for off-statement of financial position exposure, with some adjustments to
reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the regulated
companies within the Group for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. During those two years,
the individual entities within the Group complied with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to
which they are subject.

The regulated companies that are operating within the Group are Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited
and Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

Sagicor Investments Sagicor Bank Jamaica
Jamalca Limited Limited

2012 201 2012 2011

$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Tier 1 capital 7,463,231 7,041,585 3,077,292 2,567,871

Tier 2 capital 1,389,657 1,380,884 73,929 71,610

Total regulatory capital 8,852,888 8,422,469 3,151,221 2,639,481

Total required capital 5,157 277 4,014,271 1,486,036 1,034,021
Risk-weighled assets:

On-statement of financial position 15,232,982 10,542,524 11,018,083 7,725,499

Off-statement of financial position - - 1,219,130 894,705

Foreign exchange exposure 421,074 1,292,447 2,623,142 1,720,001

Total risk-weighted assets 15,654,056 11,834,971 14,860,355 10,340,205

Market Risk 35,918,713 28,307,740 - -

Total Risk 51,572,769 40,142,711 14,860,355 10,340,205

Actual capital base to risk 17% 21% 21% 26%

Required capital base to risk 10% 10% 10% 10%

(e) Derivative products

The Group's derivative activities give rise to open positions in portfolios of derivatives. These positions are
managed constantly to ensure that they remain within acceptable risk levels, with matching deals being utiiised
to achieve this where necessary. When entering into derivative transactions, the Group employs the same
credit risk management procedures to assess and approve potentiai credit exposures that are used for
traditional lending.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical judgements in applying the Group'’s accounting policies

(b)

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant
judgements regarding the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Held to maturity investments

The Group follows the IAS 39 guidance on ciassifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity.

If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than specific circumstances explained in
IAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as available-for-sale. The investments would
therefore be measured at fair value not amortised cost. The fair value would increase by $169,631,000
(2011 — $249,348,000) with a corresponding entry in the fair value reserve in stockholders’ equity.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
Areas of key sources of estimation uncertainty include the following:

{i)  Income taxes
Estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for possible tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were originally recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(i) Impairment losses on loans and leases
Loans and leases are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in Note 2(m)(i).

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed reguiarly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience. Were the net present value of estimated cash flows to differ by +/-5%, the impairment loss
is to be estimated $135,613,000 and $64,954,000 for the Group and company (2011 - $72,794,000
and $58,829,000} higher or lower.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iii)  Fair value of securities not quoted in an active market

The fair value of such securities not quoted in an active market may be determined using reputable
pricing sources (such as pricing agencies) or indicative prices from bond/debt market makers. Broker
quotes as obtained from the pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding. The
Group exercises judgement and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources used. Where
no market data is available, the Group may value positions using its own models, which are usually
based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognised as standard within the industry. The
inputs into these models are primarily discounted cash flows. The models used to determine fair
values are periodically reviewed by experienced personnel. The models used for debt securities are
based on net present value of estimated future cash flows, adjusted as appropriate for liquidity, and
credit and market risk factors.

5. Segment Reporting
Management has determined the operating segment based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group is organised and managed in five main reportable
operating segments based on its business activities. The designated segments are as follows:

(a) Treasury Management- this incorporates the Primary Dealer Unit, Cash Management Services and currency
exposure.

(b) Corporate and Retail Credit — this incorporates the Group's loan and leasing activities.

(c) Asset Management — this incorporates the administration of the unit trust and other fund management
aclivities.

(d) Trading - this incorporates foreign currency trading, bond trading, equity trading and stock brokerage.
(e} Corporate Trust - this incorporates corporate trust, share register and paying agency services.

The Group measures the performance of its operating segments through a measure of segment profit or loss
which is profit before taxation.

A measure of segment assets is only required to be disclosed if the measure is regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. Segment assets include interest-bearing assets. No other information is reported to or
used by the CODM in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

Segment liabilities that are reviewed by the CODM include interest-bearing liabilities.

Transactions between the operating segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions. There has been
no change in the basis of the pricing of transactions over the prior year.

Net interest income is reported as the CODM relies primarily on the net interest income in assessing segment
performance.

The Group's operations are located in Jamaica.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue in 2012 or 2011
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5. Segment Reporting (Continued)

The Group
Year ended 31 December 2012
Corporate
Treasury & Retail Asset Corporate
Management Credit Management Trading Trust  Eliminations Group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross external
revenues 5,601,542 934,214 160,641 646,088 58.321 - 7.400,808
Revenues/expenses
from other segments 29,040 - - - - (29,040) -
Total gross revenues 5.630,582 934,214 160,641 646,088 58,321 (29.040) 7,400,808
Tolal expenses (4,041,169) (855,844) (155,052) (271,32N (71,321) 29,040 (5,365,673)
Profit before tax 1,589,413 78,370 5,589 374,761 {13,000) - 2,035,133
Tax expense (582,457)
Net profit 1,452,676
Segment assets 66,444,718 9,369,523 - 4,495432 . - 80,329,673
Unallocated assels 7,904,511
Total Assets 88,234,184
Segment liabilities 73,975,738 468,746 - - - - 74,444 484
Unallocated liabilities 1,766,215
Total Liabilities 76.210,699
Other segment items -
Net interest income 2,510,470 508,564 - - - - 3,017.034
Impairment charges - 18,658 - - - - 16,658
Capilal expenditure 66,662 178,268 - - - - 244,930
Depreciation 35,206 15,204 - - - - 50,410
Amortisation charges 16,282 10,851 - - - - 27,133
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5. Segment Reporting (Continued)

The Group
Year ended 31 December 2011
Corporate
Treasury & Retail Asset Corporate
Management Credit Management Trading Trust  Eliminations Group
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Gross extemal
revenues 5,186,932 1,034,869 252,006 686,716 50,751 - 7.211,274
Revenuesl/expenses
from other segments 19,419 - - - - (19.419) -
Total gross revenues 5,206,351 1,034,869 252,008 686,716 50,751 {19,419) 7,211,274
Total expenses {3,848.,663) (791,796) (56,111)  (135,353) {89,468) 19,419 {4,901,972)
Profit before tax 1,367,688 243,073 195,895 551,363 {38,717) - 2,309,302
Tax expense (588.646)
Net profit 1,720,656
Segment assets 65,039,506 9,257.881 - 610,940 - - 74,908,327
Unallocated assets 5,205,609
Total Assets 80,203,936
Segment liabilities 66,187,540 764,019 - - - - 66,951,559
Unallocated liabilities 1,293,018
Total Liabilities 68,244,577
Other segment items -
Net Interest income 2,477,085 483,005 - - - - 2,940,000
Impaimment charges - 23,278 . - - - 23,278
Impairment reversal (52,051) - - - - - (52,051)
Capital expenditure 11,132 76,083 - - - - 87,215
Deprecialion 30,455 14,131 - - - - 44,586
Amortisation charges 8,455 31,918 - - - - 40,373
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6. Interest Expense

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Customer deposits, repurchase
liabilities and other accounts 3,037,736 3,028,114 2,678,857 2,688,421
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 65,320 84 976 31,363 50,340
Cross currency swap (Note 22) 181,366 S 181,366 S
Redeemable preference shares & 76,900 - 76,900
3,284,422 3,189,990 2,891,586 2,815,661
7. Fees and Commission Income
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Asset management fees 134,240 250,507 134,240 250,507
Credit related fees 32,933 36,155 19,072 16,668
Stock brokerage fees 40,118 30,438 40,117 30,438
Trust fees 50,321 47,751 22,585 24,388
Corporate finance fees 44,314 - 44,314 -
Wholesale banking fees 5,380 6,048 5,380 6,048
Treasury fees 19,388 20,190 6,820 11,708
Other 6,136 1,345 6,136 1,345
332,830 392,434 278,664 341,102
8. Net Trading Income
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Foreign exchange trading and
translation gains 246,879 144,140 18,391 25,406
Equities trading gains and dividends 6,350 18,951 561 18,951
Securities trading gains/(losses) -
Available-for-saie investment
securities 289,951 495,528 278,252 447,754
Trading securities 216,821 (13,916) 216,821 {13,916)
Derivative financial instruments (44,386) 11,582 (44,386) 11,586
715,615 656,285 469,639 489,781

Gains or losses on currency derivatives are inciuded in foreign exchange trading and translation gains.
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9. Other Revenue

Structured products
Service fees
Other

10. Team Member Costs

Wages and salaries
Statutory contributions

Pension costs — Defined contribution
scheme (Note 30)

Pension costs - Defined benefit
scheme {Note 30)

Other post-employment benefits
(Note 30)

Other team member benefits
Stock options expense (Note 37)
Share grant expense

The number of persons employed at the end of the year :

Full-time
Part-time

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
15,863 5,499 15,863 5,499
32,838 23,599 - -
2,204 3,377 4,256 3,128
50,905 32,475 20,119 8,627

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
§69,998 777,405 560,829 497,097
81,603 73,811 52,491 48,189
10,316 - 5,180 -
23,828 2,814 - -
5,433 14,734 = -
99,500 70,247 96,521 65,353
6,296 20,488 6,295 20,488
24,737 43,754 24,737 43,754
1,121,711 1,003,253 746,053 674,881

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
No. No. No. No,
272 268 135 129
25 24 20 20
207 292 155 149
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11. !mpairment Charges/(Reversals)

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $’'000 $'000
Investment securities - (52,051) - (52,051}
Loans 8,255 34,378 (11,174) 13,515
Lease receivables 3,360 1,754 S -
Other 5,043 (12,854) 897 (15,505)
16,658 (28,773) (10,277) (54,041)
12. Other Expenses
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Amortisation (Note 28) 27,133 40,373 16,282 8,455
Asset tax expense 110,271 126 84,301 35
Audit fees -
Current 12,360 11,212 6.530 5,935
Prior 635 1,400 761 1,335
Automated banking fees 9,614 7129 - :
Bank charges 32,194 26,070 12,640 9,512
Commissions and fees 28,217 28,388 17,015 18,321
Consultancy fees 7.807 3,734 - -
Depreciation (Note 29) 50,410 44,566 35,206 30,455
Donations 1,618 915 1,206 775
Insurance 30,801 31,908 6,159 7,927
Investment management expense 2,213 45,000 2,212 45,000
Irrecoverable General Consumption Tax 69,796 52,396 33,007 21,172
Legal and professional fees 24,533 13,044 17,188 9,938
Licensing fees 32,048 29,093 10,180 9,919
Miscellaneous 10,545 5,079 5,349 1,825
Motor vehicle expense 7.642 8,588 2,781 3,947
Office expenses 7,000 9,302 1,875 3,682
Printing and stationery 11,418 7,153 2,655 2,145
Promotion and advertising 136,118 85,195 80,346 43,183
Repairs and maintenance 11,680 9,659 5,103 1,639
Security 14,006 9,989 787 244
Stamp duty 263 983 258 978
Technology project expense 119,470 103,714 119,470 103,714
Telephong and postage 24,515 21,520 12,608 9,169
Travelling and entertainment 9,341 14,424 4,104 7,182
791,648 610,980 478,023 346,487

During the year the assetl tax regime was substantially amended for specified regulated enfities with the tax being
calculatedculated provisionally at a rate of 0.14% of adjusted asset values al year end.
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13. Taxation

(@)

(b)

Income tax is computed on the profit for the
comprises income tax at 33%%:

years adjusted for tax purposes. The charge for taxation

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $°000 $’000 $'000
Current lax 566,044 564,298 439,650 470,639
Prior year under/(over) provision 13,383 (127) 9,790 14,378
Deferred tax (Note 34) 3,030 24,475 (20,183) 14,765
582,457 588,646 429,257 499,782

The tax on profit differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the statutory rate of 33%% as

follows:
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Profit before taxation 2,035,133 2,309,302 1,574,595 1,908,000
Tax calculated at 33%% 678,378 769,767 524,865 636,000
Adjusted for the effects of:
Income not subject to tax {154,381) {175,163) {123,046) (144,933)
Asset tax not deductible for taxation
purposes 36,757 28,100 -
Prior year under/(over)provision 13,383 {127) 9,790 14,378
Net effect of other charges and
allowances 8,320 (5.831) (10,542) (5,663)
582,457 588,646 429,257 499,782
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13. Taxation (Continued)

(c) The deferred tax credit/(charge), relating to components of other comprehensive income, are as follows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Arising on losses/(gains) recognised in
other comprehensive income -
Available-for-sale investments 193,276 (308,633) 163,791 (254,101)
Reclassifications from other
comprehensive income to income
statement -
Available-for-sale investments 138,752 193,598 138,157 159,817
Cash flow hedge (Note 22) 19,949 3,881 19,949 3,881
158,701 197,479 158,106 163,698
351,977 (111,154) 321,897 (90,403)
14. Net Profit
2012 2011
$°000 $'000
Dealt with in the financial statements of:
The company 1,145,338 1,408,218
The subsidiaries 307,338 312,438
1,452,676 1,720,656
15. Retained Eamings
2012 2011
$°000 $°000
Reflected in the financial statements of:
The company 4,418,979 3,989,281
The subsidiaries 245,221 437,678
4,664,200 4,428,959
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16. Earnings per Stock Unit

(i) Basic earnings per stock unit is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to stockholders of the company

by the weighted average number of ordinary stock units in issue during the year.

Net profit attributable to stockholders ($'000)
Weighted average number of ordinary stock unils in issue ('000)
Basic earnings per stock unil (§)

2012 2011
1,452,676 1,720,656
552,146 550,737
2.63 312

(i) Diluted earnings per stock unit is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to stockholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary stock units, as adjusted for the effects of potential dilutive effect of the

stock options.

Net profit atiributable to stockholders ($'000)
Weighted average number of ordinary stock units in issue (‘000)
Diluted earnings per stock unit ($)

2012 2011
1,452,676 1,720,856
555,556 554,418
2.61 3.09

(i) The weighted average number of ordinary stock units used in the basic and diluted eamnings per stock unit

computations may be reconciled as follows:

2012 2011
‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary stock units for the purposes of the
computation of basic earnings per stock unit 552,146 550,737
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary stock units — slock options 3410 3,681

Weighted average number of ordinary stock units for the purposes of the
computation of diluted earnings per stock unit 555,556 554,418

17. Cash and Balances Due from Other Financial Institutions
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Placements with other financial

institutions 355,970 145,373 230,989 145,373
ltems in the course of collection 154,475 98,292 - -
Cash in hand and at bank 3,575,340 1,983,819 2,736,047 1,572,606

4,085,785 2,227,484

2,967,036 1,717,979
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17.

18.

19.

Cash and Balances Due from Other Financial Institutions (Continued)

Included in cash and balances due from other financial institutions are the following amounts, which are
regarded as cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Cash and balances due from other
financial institutions
(Note 23) 3.854,796 2,082,111 2,736,047 1,572,608

Cash Reserve at Bank of Jamaica

A prescribed minimum of 26% (2011 - 26%) of deposit liabilities are required to be maintained by the banking
subsidiary in liquid assets, of which 12% (2011 - 12%) must be maintained as cash reserve with the Bank of
Jamaica for Jamaican dollar currency and 9% (2011 — 9% for the relevant foreign currency. The cash reserve is
nol available for investment, lending or other use by the Group.

Trading Securities

The Group and Company
2012 2011
$'000 $°000

Debt securities -
Government of Jamaica 4,026,553 137,103
Corporate bonds 19,623 63,774
Unquoted preference shares 374,413 408,188
Quoted equity security 50,022 -
4,470,611 609,065
Interest receivable 24,821 1,875
4,495,432 610,940

Included in Government of Jamaica debi securities is a Euro dollar promissory note which has been designated as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. The company has also entered into a cross currency swap to
mitigate the currency risk associated with this security (Note 22),

Preference shares consist of Equity Linked (ELP) and Dividend linked (DLP} preference shares. The ELP will
provide returns based on the capital gainsfloss from movement in the price of a lisled stock and the DLP will
provide returns based on the dividend income of the same stock. The terms of the preference shares provide for
ELPs 1o receive twice the capital gain or loss from movement in the price of the underlying listed stock while the
DLPs receive none of the capital gains or loss.
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20. Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Principal 1,778,058 986,684 2,351,642 303,798
Interest receivable 5,456 5,220 5,370 4,276
1,783,514 991,904 2,357,012 308,074

The Group and the company entered into reverse repurchase agreements collateralised by Government of

Jamaica securities. These agreements may result in credit exposure in the event that the counterparty to the
iransaction is unable to fulfil its contractual obligation.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held $2,078,780,000 {2011 - $987,272,000) of securities, mainly representing
Government of Jamaica debt securities, as collateral for reverse repurchase agreements.

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Securities purchased under agreement to
resell with an original maturity of less
than 90 days {Note 23) 1,227,608 742,384 1,809,291 77,028
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21, Investment Securities

Available-for-sale securities -
Debt securities -
Government of Jamaica
Corporate bonds
Credit linked notes

Bank of Jamaica Certificates of
Deposit
Other sovereign debt

Unit Trust -
Quoted - at fair value

Equity securities -
Unquoted - at cost

Held-to-maturity investments -
Credit linked notes

Less: Pledged assets (Note 26)

Less: Impairment charges

Interest receivable

The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
46,840,407 49,913,831 41,756,094 44,591,905
7,267,996 7,570,523 4,477,407 6,606,717
2,100,136 1,925,171 2,100,136 1,925,171
115,000 602,500 35,000 502,500
930,066 153,564 744,707 153,564
57,253,605 60,165,589 49,113,344 53,779,857
178,680 169,740 178,680 169,740
178,680 169,740 178,680 169,740
115,817 114,888 100,461 100,461
115,817 114,888 100,461 100,461
57,548,102 60,450,217 49,392,485 54,050,058
1,777,293 1,644,317 1,777,293 1,644,317
59,325,395 62,094,534 51,169,778 55,694,375
(3,943,434) (7,831,016) (3,657,204) (7,831,016)
55,381,961 54,263,518 47,512,574 47,863,359
(41,192) {41,192) (41,192) (41,192)
55,340,769 54,222,326 47,471,382 47,822,167
1,123,897 1,154,838 971,545 1,012,226
56,464,666 55,377,164 48,442,927 48,834,393

During 2011, an impairment charge previously recognised on a debt security was reversed due to payments

received (Note 11).

Credit linked notes are structured securities wi
credi risks to the holder. The coupon or
Government of Jamaica security. Investors in

specified credit events.

th embedded credit swaps allowing the issuer to transfer specific
price of these nole are linked to the performance of a specific
these instruments are given higher yields for accepting exposure to
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21. Investment Securities (Continued)

Included in investment securities are the following amounts, which are regarded as cash equivalents for purposes
of the statement of cash flows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Debt securilies with an original
malurity of less than 90 days
(Note 23) - 605,079 - 505,045

During 2008, the Group and the Company reclassified certain financial assets out of available-for-sale category
into the held-to-maturity category. The Group and the company have the intention and ability fo hold these
reclassified investiments for the foreseeable future or until maturity. As at 31 December 2012, the fair values and
carrying values of financial assets reclassified is $2,023,535,000 (2011 - $1,879,981,000) and $1,853,904,000
(2011 - $1,715,800,000). The effective interest rate on these instruments ranges from 12.7% to 12.9%.

The fair value gain that would have been recognised in other comprehensive income for the Group and Company
if these investment securities had not been reclassified is $169,631,000 (2011 — $249,348,000).

There was no reclassification of financial assets during the year.

The following are included in the income statement for investment securities reclassified in 2008;

The Group and The
Company
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Interest income 202,281 186,065
Foreign exchange gain 146,660 14,769

348,941 200,834
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22, Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activity

Derivatives are at fair value and carried in the statement of financial position as separate assels and liabilities. Asset
values represent the cost to the Group of replacing all iransactions with a fair value in the Group’s favour assuming
that all relevant counterparties default at the same time, and thal transactions can be replaced instantaneously.
Liability values represent the cost to the Group counterparties of replacing all their transactions with the Group with a
fair value in their favour if the Group were to default. Derivative assets and liabilities on different transactions are
only set off if the transactions are with the same counterparty, a legal right of set-off exists and the cash flows are
intended to be settled on a net basis.

The fair values are set out below —

The Group and Company
Assets Liabilities
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(i) Currency forwards 257,187 567,482 245,055 561,392
(i) Cross currency swap 3,952,001 = 4,021,595 -
{iii) Exchange traded funds — short sale e - - 111,498
(iv) Equity indexed oplions 43,916 27,710 43,916 27,710
(v} Interest rate swap o 244,228 o -

4,253,104 839,420 4,310,566 700,600
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22. Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activity {Continued)

(i

(ii)

iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Currency forwards

The company has entered into currency forwards to buy US dollars and sell Euro dollars totalling €2,000,000
(2011 - €5,035,000) to be settled on a gross basis at a future date at a specified price. The credit risk is
evaluated for each contract and is collateralised where deemed necessary. The currency forward contracts are
settled on a gross basis. The contract expires in Navember 2014,

Cross currency swap

The company entered into a currency swap with an initial notionai principal amount of €45 million maturing in
February 2015. Under the terms of this swap, the company pays euro at a rate of 5% and receives 4.26% in
US dollars on the notional principal amount,

The company obtains principal and interest receipts in euros on a promissory note included in Note 19.

Exchange traded funds - short sale
During 2009, the company entered into transactions to sell euro currencies that were borrowed from a broker.
The company benefits if there is a decline in the asset price between the sale and repurchase date. The
contract was closed in August 2012.

Equity indexed options

These derivative instruments give the holder the ability to participate in the upward movement of an equity
index while protecting from downward risk and form part of certain structured product contracts with customers
(Note 32). The Group is exposed to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the extent of the carrying
amount, which is their fair value.

Interest rate swap and hedging activity — cash flow hedge
In 2010, hedge accounting was discontinued as the hedge relationship was no longer effective.

The notional principal amount of the interest rate swap contract was US$20M. The fixed interest rate was
10.201% and the floating rate was based on USD-LIBOR-BBA.

The contract was closed in February 2012. Accordingly, the remaining unamortised gains included in the fair
value reserve were reclassified to the net trading income. The amount reclassified, net of deferred taxation,
was $39,897,000 (2011 - $7,762,000).

OTC currency put aptions

Foreign currency put options are contractual agreements under which the seller grants the purchaser the right
but not the obligation to sell at a set date, a specified amount of a foreign currency at a predetermined price.
The seller receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange risk.

The company has entered into a currency option with its parent company (Sagicor Life Jamaica Limited) to
purchase a set amount of United States dollars at an agreed price if the closing Bank of Jamaica weighted
average selling rate for the United States Dollar is less than the stated amount. The expiration date of this
contract is 2039. The fair value of this option was $Nil at the year end.
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23. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and balances due from other financial
institutions (Note 17) 3,854,797 2,082,111 2,736,047 1,672,606

Securities purchased under agreements
to resell (Note 20) 1,227,608 742,384 1,809,291

77,028
Investment securities {Note 21) - 605,079 - 505,045
Repurchase agreements with financial
institutions (2,868,944)  (1,221,303) (2,348,433) (1,221,303)
Items in the course of payment (Note 35) (89,962) (119,179) - -
Short term loan (Note 33) = (3,597) (5,842) {4,102)
2,123,499 2,085,495 2,191,063 929,274
24. Loans, Net of Provision for Credit Losses
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gross loans and advances 9,450,247 9,380,059 2,296,016 2,380,058
Less: Provision for credit losses (215,902) (230,315) (103,918) {108,119)
9,234,345 9,149,744 2,192,098 2,271,939
Loan interest receivable 96,019 92,621 25,503 17,099

9,330,364 9,242,365 2,217,601 2,289,038

The aggregate amount of non-performing loans on which interest was not being accrued is as follows:;

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $000 $’'000
Total non-performing loans 517,556 417,188 264,748 247,521
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24. Loans, Net of Provision for Credit Losses {Continued)

The movement in the provision for credit losses determined under the requirements of IFRS is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year

Provided during the year

Recoveries

Net charge to the income statement
(Note 11)

Write-offs

Currency revaluation adjustment

Balance at end of year

25. Lease Receivables

Gross investment in finance leases -
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than

five years

Unearned finance income
Net investment in finance leases

Net investment in finance leases -
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than

five years
Less Provision for credit losses

Interest receivable

The aggregate amount of non-performing lease receivables on which interest was not being accrued is $30,244,000

(2011 - $27,744,000).

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
230,315 194,897 108,119 93,781
75,882 38,910 12,958 18,047
(67,627) (4,532) (24,132) {4.532)
8,255 34,378 (11,174) 13,515
(31,244) - - -
8,576 1,040 6,973 823
215,902 230,315 103,918 108,119
The Group

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

81,790 25,907

21,890 17.404

103,680 43,311
{21,222) (7,386)

82,458 35,925

67,289 20,434

15,169 15,491

82,458 35,925

(24,024) (20,664)

58,434 15,261

725 254

59,159 15,515
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26. Pledged Assets

Assets are pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements with customers and other financial institutions and for
security relating to overdraft and other facilities with other financial institutions and with the Bank of Jamaica.

The Group
Asset Related liability
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
Investment securities and securities
purchased under resale agreements 59,007,906 55,928,848 58,295,132 54,630,650
The Company
Asset Related liahility
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $:000 $'000 $’000
Investment securities and securities
purchased under resale agreements 57,891,569 55,028,848 56,839,727 54,630,650

Of the assets pledged as security, the following represents the total for those assets pledged for which the
transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral.

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $’000 $°000 $'000
Investment securities (Note 21) 3,943,434 7,831,016 3,657,204 7,831,016

27. Related Party Transactions and Balances

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial or operational decisions. There were no related party transactions with the ultimate
parent company.

Related companies include ultimate parent company, parent company, fellow subsidiaries and associated company.
Related parties include directors, key management and companies for which the Group and its parent company
provide management services.
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27. Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

(i) The following transactions were carried out with related parties and companies:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
With parent company -
Management fees earned 1562 141,950 152 141,950
Interest and other income earned 52,985 4,856 45,438 4,856
Interest and other expenses paid (210,924) (91,697) (192,482) (91,697)
Investment management fees paid - (45,000) - (45,000)
Rent and net lease recoveries paid
to related party (5,743) {6,805) (1,869) (1,729)
With fellow subsidiaries -
Interest income earned 18,343 - 18,343 3,129
Interest expense paid (18,943) (14,329) (18,863) (30,446)
Commission earned - 4,856 - 4,856
Pension expense recharge - = - 9,145
With directors and key management -
Interest expense paid (6,940) (5,909) (6,565) {5,613)
Interest income earned 2,728 2,390 517 176
Post-employment benefits 2,265 - - -
Share based payments 36,165 55,182 36,165 55,182
Salaries and other short-term
benefits 224,254 203,389 135,548 124,726
Party with significant influence over
party company
Fee income earned 32,500 - 32,500 -
Rent and net lease {(117,894) {103,956) {46,424) {43,324)
Interest expense paid (9,092) (3,496) {9,092) (3.496)
Interest income earned 3157 801 - -
With managed funds -
Management fees earned 109,817 86,958 109,817 86,958
Interest expense paid (42,697) {40,671) (42,697) (40,671)
Directors’ emoluments -
Fees 18,057 16,731 12,995 12,631
Other 77,782 79,564 77,782 53,777

95,839 96,295 90,777 66,408
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27. Related Party Transactions and Balances {Continued)

(i)

Year-end balances with related companies and parties are as follows:

With ultimate parent company -

Balances due from ultimate parent
company

With parent company -
Customer deposits
Customer deposits — managed funds

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Securities sold under agreaments to
repurchase - managed funds

Balances due to parent company
With fellow subsidiaries -

Cash and bank balances

Securities purchased under
agreement to reseli

Customer deposits

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase - managed funds

Due to banks and other financial
institutions

Balances due to fellow subsidiaries

Party with significant influence over party

company

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Customer deposits

Loans

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
609 = - -
(144,566) (164,607) - -
(124,247) - -
{1,431,568) {405,626) (1,431,568) {405,626)
(3,349,004) (2,624,007) (3,349,004) (2,624,007)
(36,533) (45,097) (36,533) {45,097)
333,389 - 330,080 787,763
700,245 - - -
{196,225) (140,580) - -
(260,826) (665,390) (260,844) {683,910)
(185,864) (93,123) (185,864) (93,123)
- - (5,482) {505)
{9,028) {7,254) (53,638) {64,312)
514,559 270,631 514,559 270,631
{80,230) (57,609) - -
23,471 17,855 - -
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27. Related Party Transactions and Balances {(Continued)

(ii)

Year-end balances with related companies and parties are as follows (continued):

With directors and key management
personnel -

Loans
Customer deposits and other accounts

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

With managed funds -
Loans
Customers deposits

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Balances due from other related parties

Party with significant influence over party
company

Due to related party

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000
20,494 20,234 2,058 753
(28,578) (37,414) 5 -
(86,949) (127,814) (86,949) (127,814)
6,361 7,741 S -
(12,130) (372,731) - -
(742,346) (2,929,155) (742,346) (2,929,155)
47,887 8,527 47,887 8,527
(59,896} - {59,896) -
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28. Intangible Assets

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 201
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Computer software 73,826 47,550 63,673 26,547
Goodwill 733,750 733,750 143,263 143,263
807,576 781,300 206,936 169,810
Computer software
The Group The Company
2012 201 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening net book value 47,550 51,708 26,547 14,039
Additions 53,409 36,215 53,408 20,963
Amortisation (27,133) {40,373) {16,282) (8,455)
73,826 47,550 63,673 26,547
Cost, net of grant 409,859 356,450 199,115 145,707
Accumulated amortisation {336,033) {308,900) {135,442) {119,160)
73,826 47,550 63,673 26,547

The intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised over three years. The amortisation of computer
software is included in other expenses in the income statement.

Goodwill

Impairment test for gaodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) identified according to the lines of business.

The impairment test is carried out by comparing the recoverable amount of the Group’s cash generating units
(CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated to the carrying amount of those CGUs plus goodwill. For the purposes
of the impairment assessment, goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s cash generating units as follows:

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Asset Management 54,604 54,604
Credit 75417 75,417
Treasury, PDU & Investment Services 443,992 443,992
Trading & Brokerage 152,437 152,437
Trust Services 7,300 7,300
733,750 733,750

The recoverable amount is based on its fair value less costs to sell, as estimated on the basis of the price/earnings
ratios of similar businesses. Observable market prices are used.

There was no impairment of any of the Group's CGUs.
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29. Property, Plant and Equipment

Fumniture
Leasehold and Motor Computer
Improvement Equipment Vehicles Equipment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2011 150,718 136,011 11,057 168,657 466,443
Additions 12,576 26,420 2,159 11,195 52,350
Disposals - (133) (1,062) (194) (1.389)
At 31 December 2011 163,294 162,298 12,154 179,658 517,404
Additions 137,535 37.567 9,402 7.017 191,521
Disposals - (1,111 (315) {92) {1.518}
Al 31 December 2012 300,829 198,754 21,241 186,583 707,407
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2011 57.251 112,661 2,660 132,944 305,516
Charge for the year 15,348 14,762 2,129 12,347 44,586
Disposals - {133) (1.062) (194) (1.389)
At 31 December 2011 72,599 127,290 3727 145,097 348,713
Charge for the year 18,436 17,414 3.3 11,189 50,410
Disposals - (1,111} (315) (29) {1,455)
At 31 December 2012 91,035 143,593 6.783 156,257 397,668
Net Book Value
At 3t December 2012 209,794 55,161 14,458 30,326 309,739
At 31 December 2011 90,695 35.008 8,427 34,561 168,691
The Company
Cost
At 1 January 2011 99,670 55,151 9,289 95,567 259,677
Additions 12,345 20,214 1.350 8.749 42,658
Disposals - - {175} (194) (369)
At 31 December 2011 112,015 75,365 10,464 104,122 301,966
Additions 255 7.352 1,404 4,242 13,253
Disposals = - - (92) (92)
At 31 December 2012 112,270 82,717 11,868 108,272 315,127
Accumulated Depraciation
At 1 January 2011 35,324 34,140 1,294 79,291 150,049
Charge for the year 10,816 8,705 1,835 8,999 30,455
Disposals - - (175) {194) (369)
At 31 December 2011 46,140 42,845 3,054 88,006 180,135
Charge for the year 11,214 12,866 2,297 8,829 35,206
Disposals - - - (29} {29)
At 31 December 2012 57,354 55,711 5,351 96,896 215,312
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2012 54,916 27,006 6,517 11,376 99,815

At 31 December 2011 65,875 32,520 7,410 16,026 121,831
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30. Post-employment Benefits
(a) Pension schemes
The Group has established two pension schemes covering all permanent employees, a defined benefit plan
and a defined contribution plan. The assets of the funded plans are held independently of the Group’s assets
in separate trustee administered funds.

Defined contribution pan

The Defined contribution plan received regulatory approval during 2012. All new employees will be included
in this plan.

Defined benefit plan

The Defined benefit plan is valued by independent actuaries annually using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2012. The plan provides benefils to
members based on the average earnings over the 5 years immediately prior to exit.

The rate of contribution of the company for the defined benefit plan is 8.6% of pensionable salary. Any plan
surplus or funding deficiency is absorbed by a subsidiary company, Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited {formerly
PanCaribbeanBank Limited). Accordingly, no pension assets or obligations were recorded for the company in
these financial statements.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

The Group

2012 2011

$'000 $°000

Present value of funded obligations 441,435 387,321
Fair value of plan assets {477,164) (415,794)
(35,729) (28,473)
Unrecognised actuarial loss {56,930) (56,941)

Limitation of asset due to uncertainty of
obtaining economic benefits 56,930 56,941

Asset in the statement of financial position (35,729) {28,473)
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30. Post-employment Benefits (Continued)
(a) Pension scheme (continued)

The movement in the present value of defined obligations over the year is as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
$’000 $'000
Balance at beginning of year 387,321 366,972
Current service cost 16,961 27.174
Interest cost 34,025 35,567
Members’ contributions 22,315 22,169
Benefits paid (20,796) {23,155)
Purchased annuities 1,854 7,582
Actuarial gain on obligation (245) {48,988)
Balance at end of year 441,435 387,321
The movement in the fair value of plan assets during the year is as follows:
The Group
2012 2011
$°000 $°000
Balance at beginning of year 415,794 337,276
Members’ contributions 22,315 22,169
Employer's contribution 31,084 31,287
Expected return on plan assets 28,329 28,171
Benefits paid (20,796) {23,155)
Purchased annuities 1,854 7,582
Actuarial (loss)/gain {1,416) 12,464
Balance at end of year 477,164 415,794
Plan assets are comprised as follows:
The Group
2012 2011
$°000 % $’000 %
Debt securities 400,458 84 355,795 85
Real estate 28,405 6 23,469 6
Equity securities 15,491 3 15,425 4
Other 32,810 7 21,105 5
477,164 100 415,794 100
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30. Post-employment Benefits (Continued)

(a} Pension schemes (continued)
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

The Group

2012 2011

$'000 $°000
Current service cost 16,961 27,174
Interest cost 34,025 35,567
Expected return on plan assets (28,329) {28,171)
Recognised actuarial loss 1,182 6,808
Change in unrecognised assets (11) {38,564)
Total, included in team member costs (Note 10) 23,828 2,814

The actual return on plan assets was $34,397,000 (2011 — $48,030,000). The expected rate of return is
derived from investing the plan assets net of administration expenses and taxes.

Expected contributions to post-employment plan for the year ending 31 December 2013 are $31,938,000.

Movements in the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:

The Group
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Asset at beginning of year {28,473) =
Amounts recognised in the income statement
(Note 10) 23,828 2,814
Contributions paid (31,084) (31,287)
Asset at end of vear (35,729) (28,473)

The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectation of inflation plus a margin for real
returns on a balanced portfolio.

The Group
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
As at 31 December
Present value of defined benefit
obligation 441,435 387,321 366,972 203,413 160,949
Fair value of plan assets {477,164) (415,794)  (337,276) (261,288) (182,657)
{Surplus)/deficit (35,729) (28,473) 29,696 (57,875) {21,708)
Experience adjustments on plan
liabilities {245) (48,988) 109,868 (9,422) 4,904

Experience adjustments on plan
assefs 1,416 (12,464) {4,310) (3,900) 39,965
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30. Post-employment Benefits (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate

Expected return of plan assets
Fulture salary increases
Expected pension increase

Average expected remaining working lives {(years)

{b) Other post-retirement benefits

The Group
2012 2011
10.5% 10%
9.5% 6.5%
8% 7.5%
0% 0%
13 13

In addition to pension benefits, the Group offers retirees medical and life insurance benefits that contribute to
the health care and life insurance coverage of employees and beneficiaries after retirement. The method of
accounting and frequency of valuations are similar to those used for defined benefit pension schemes.

In addition to the assumptions used for pension schemes, the main actuarial assumption is a long-term

increase in health cost of 9% (2011 — 8%) per annum.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

Present value of unfunded obligations
Unrecognised actuarial gain

Liability in the statement of financial position

The Group
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
39,936 34,147
18,099 18,455
58,035 52,602

The movement in the present value of unfunded obligations defined benefit abligation over the year is as

follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial gain on obligation

Balance at end of year

The Group

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
34147 58,235

3,371 7,331

3,406 6.400

(187) (116)

{801) (37,703)

39,936

34,147
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30. Post-employment Benefits (Continued)

(b)  Other post-retirement benefits {continued)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
$'000 $'000
Current service cost 3,371 7,331
Interest cost 3,406 6,400
Benefits paid (187) (116)
Recognised (gain)loss (1,157) 1,119
Total, included in team member costs
{Note 10) 5,433 14,734
Movement in the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:
The Group
2012 2011
$000 $°000
Liability at beginning of year 52,602 37,868
Amounts recognised in the income statement (Note 10) 5,433 14,734
Liability at end of year 58,035 52,602

The effects of a 1 percentage point movement in the assumed medical cost trend rate were as follows:

The Group
2012
$'000
Decrease Increase
Effect on the aggregate of current service cost 2,664 4,311
Effect on the aggregate of interest cost 2,777 4,227
Effect on the defined benefit obligation 32,333 49,886
The Group
2011
$'000
Decrease Increase
Effect on the aggregate of current service cost 5,663 9,590
Effect on the aggregate of interest cost 5,049 8,201

Effect on the defined benefit obligation 27,857 42,364
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31. Other Assets

The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000

Withholding tax recoverable from
Government of Jamaica 1,705,512 1,341,653 1,433,846 1,153,448
Customer settlement accounts 18,585 149,758 18,343 120,333
Prepayments 23,794 5,961 23,794 5,961
Staff receivables 58,396 29,627 58,396 29,627
Property, plant and equipment deposits 15,574 2,426 7,461 1,419
Other 54,353 26,502 31,7H 14,143

1,876,214 1,555,927 1,573,631 1,324,931

32. Structured Products

The Group and The
Company
2012 2011
$'000 $°000
Principal protected notes -

With no interest guaranteed 315,566 274,913
With interest guaranteed 386,051 -
7.15% U.S. Dollar amortising notes 142,902 -
844,519 274,913
Interest payable 9,581 -
854,100 274,913

Principal protected notes

Principal protected notes comprise a fixed income element with or without an interest guarantee (included above)
and an equity indexed option element disclosed in Note 22. These notes entille the holders to participate in any
positive returns on the equity indexed options and they also include a principal protection feature. If the return on
the index is negative, the holder will obtain the principal invested for notes with no interest guarantee and principal
invested plus 5% interest for notes with an interest guarantee. The maturity of these notes ranges from 2013 and
2017.

U.S. Dollar Amortising Notes
The 7.15% US dollar amortising notes are structured securities whereby the principal is amortising quarterly with
final repayment by February 2015.
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33. Due to Banks and Other Financial Institutions

The Group The Company
Rate 2012 2011 2012 2011
Currency % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Long Term Loans -
The National Export Import Bank of Jamaica
Repayable in 2 instaliments in March 2013 and
April 2013 J$ 8.00 32,000 48,000 32,000 48,000
Development Bank of Jamaica Limited -
Repayable over varying periods from 24 to 96
months J$ various 28,265 57.315 28.265 57,315
Repayable over varying periods from 48 to 96
months US$ various - 1,865 - 1.865

European Investment Bank -

Repayable in 7 equal annual instaliments
commencing on 5 December 2008 and ending
2014 J$  various 132,430 264,860 132,430 264,860

Repayable in 7 equal annual installments
commencing on 5 December 2008 and

ending 2014 US$ varous 41,565 58,174 41,565 58,174
Development Bank of Jamaica Limited {DBJ)
Repayable over varying periads from 7&
6 months to 92 months J§ 10.00 187,475 234,867 - -

The Nalional Export-Import Bank of Jamaica

Limited -
Repayable over varying periods from 6 months 13.00/
to 108 months J$ 9.00 45,591 65,249 - -
467,326 730,330 234,260 430,214
Bank overdrafts-
Bank of Jamaica J$ - 3,597 - 3,597
Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited J$ - - 5,842 505
- 3.597 5,842 4,102
467,326 733,927 240,102 434,316
Interest payable 1,420 30,041 1,362 30,013

468,746 764,018 241,464 464,329
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33.

Due to Banks and Other Financial Institutions (Continued)

(a) Development Bank of Jamaica Limited (DBJ)

The agreement with the Development Bank of Jamaica Limited allows DBJ, at its absolute discretion, to
approve financing to the company for on-lending to customers for development projects which meet the
criteria of DBJ and on such terms and conditions as DBJ may stipulate.

Funds disbursed to the company bear interest at DBJ's lending rate prevailing at the date of approval of
each disbursement unless otherwise varied by DBJ and are extended to the clients at a maximum spread
as stipulated by DBJ.

(b) European Investment Bank (EIB)

()

A facility was established in the amount of €4,000,000 on 20 December 2002 for the provision of financing
to small and medium sized projects in the productive and related service sectors in Jamaica. The loan is
disbursed to the company in tranches. The draw downs may be done in US$ or J$. The loan is repayable
in the Euro equivalent of the outstanding loan balance by 7 equal instalments commencing
5 December 2008.

The National Export-Import Bank of Jamaica Limited (EXIM)

The company and its subsidiary Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited (SBJ) are approved financial institutions of
the National Export-Import Bank of Jamaica (EXIM). Through this partnership financing is provided, which
is utilised to finance customers with viable projects within EXIM's guidelines.

Trade credit, short and medium term loans are offered to customers engaged in manufacturing,
agriculture, tourism and export trading. The loans to customers are for varying terms and at a maximum
spread as stipulated by EXIM.

(d) Bank Overdrafts

The bank overdraft balances represented book overdrafts. The actual balance at the bank was positive at
year end.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its liabilities during
the year.
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34. Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of
33%% for the company and the subsidiaries. Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised on the statement of

financial position are as follows:

The Group The Company
2012 201 2012 2011
$'000 $’'000 $'000 $000
Deferred income tax assets 50,176 19,335 28,025 6,534
Deferred income tax liabilities {226,555) {544,661) (128,595) {449,184)
Net deferred income tax liability {176,379) (525,326) (100,570) {442,650)
The movement in the net deferred income tax balance is as follows:
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Balance at beginning of year (525,326) (389,697) {442,650) (337,482)
(ChargedYcredited to the income statement
{Note 13) (3,030) {24,475) 20,183 {14,765)
Tax credited/{charged) relating to components
in other comprehensive income (Note 13) 351,977 (111,154) 321,897 {90,403)
Balance at end of year (176,379) (525,326) (100,570) (442,650)
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34. Deferred Income Taxes {Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are due to the following items:

Deferred income tax assets -
Property, plant and equipment
Trading securities
Cross currency swap
Post-employment benefit obligations
Other

Deferred income tax liabilities -
Property, plant and equipment
Investment securities
Trading securities
Interest rate swap
Loan loss provision
Post-employment benefit assets

Net deferred tax liability

The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,470 3,788 1,470 1,519

- 201 - 201

21,555 - 21,555 -
19,345 8,043 - -
11,595 7,303 5,000 4,814
53,965 19,335 28,025 6,534
21,385 - - -
76,437 415,363 37,291 346,136
69,393 - 69,393 -

- 81,409 - 81,409
51,219 47,889 21,911 21,639
11,910 - - -
230,344 544,661 128,595 449,184
{176,379) (525,326) (100,570) (442,650)
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34. Deferred Income Taxes (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

The Group
Accelerated Fair Post-
tax value Loanloss employment
depreciated gains  provision benefits Other Totai
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
At 1 January 2011 334 (396,171) {13,075) 12,623 6,692 (389,697)
Credited/{charged) to income
statement 3,454 9,994 (37.607) {4,580) 4,264 (24,475)
Charged to other
comprehensive income - {111,154) - - - {111,154)
At 31 December 2011 3,788 (497,331) (50,682) 8,043 10,856 (525,326)
Charged/{credited) to income
statement (23,700) 20,069 3,250 {608) (2,041) (3,030)
Credited to other
comprehensive income - 351,977 - - - 351,977
At 31 December 2012 {19,912) (125,285) {47,432) 7.435 8,815 (176,379)
The Company
Accelerated
tax Fair value Loan loss
depreciated gains provision Other Total
$’000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
At 1 January 2011 1,200 (346,935) 4,012 4241  {337,482)
Credited/(charged) to income
statement 319 9,994 (25,651) 573 (14,765)
Charged to other
comprehensive income - (90,403) - - {90,403}
At 31 December 2011 1,519 (427,344) (21,639) 4,814  (442,650)
Charged/(credited) to income
statement (49) 20,070 (272) 434 20,183
Credited to other
comprehensive income - 321,897 - - 321,897

At 31 December 2012 1,470 (85,377) {21,911) 5248 (100,570)
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35. Other Liabilities

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Accruals 81,345 98,480 46,466 71,830
Asset tax 110,271 - 84,301 -
Customer settlement accounts 752,796 9,425 704,735 32,644
Items in the course of payment 89,962 119,179 - S
Staff related payables 161,284 128,123 111,037 87,280
Stale dated cheques 90,794 50,625 29,631 25,966
Other 31,419 35317 12,954 30,907
1,317,871 523,149 989,124 248,627

36. Share Capital

The total authorised number of ordinary stock units is 675,613,376 (2011 - 675,613,376), of which 552,145,844

(2011 ~ 552,145,844) was issued and fully paid.

The movement on share capital is as follows:

Issued and Fully Paid -

Share capital at the beginning of the year -
552,145,844 (2011 — 549,536,153) ordinary
stock units

Stocks units issued during the year —
Nil (2011 - 2,609,691) ordinary stock units

Transfer from stock options reserve (Note 38)

2012 2011
$'000 $'000
3,195,565 3,126,867
- 46,236

- 22,462
3,195,565 3,195,565

The stock units in 2012 and 2011 are stated in these financial statements without a nominal or par value.

Stock units issued during the year comprise Nil (2011 - 1,255,860) ordinary stock units issued under the
company's stock options scheme at prices varying from $12.20 to $20.50 per stock unit and Nil

(2011 - 1,353,831) ordinary stock unit grants at $20.50.
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37.

Stock Options Reserve

The company offers stock options to employees who have completed the minimum eligibility period of
employment. Options are conditional on the employee completing a minimum service period of one year
(the eligibility period). Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. Options
were granted as follows:

(i}

(i)

(iil)

(iv)

(v}

(vi)

4,074,246 stock options on 1 April 2007. These options expire on 31 March 2014. The exercise price for
the options is $18.00. These options vest over four years — 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
174,242 stock units have been taken up during the year (485,791 to date). Contracts for 927,116 of these
stocks units were forfeited to date.

3,100,273 stock options on 1 April 2008. These options expire on 31 March 2015. The exercise price for
the options is $20.50. These options vest over four years — 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
347,356 stock units have been taken up during the year (470,347 to date). Contracts for 335,358 of these
stock units were forfeited to date.

5,785,288 stock options on 1 April 2009. These options expire on 31 March 2016. The exercise price for
the options is $12.20. These options vest over four years — 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
810,335 stock units have been taken up during the year (1,785,676 to date). Contracts for 578,137 of
these stock units were forfeited to date.

3,137,791 stock option on 1 April 2010. These options expire on 31 March 2017. The exercise price for
the oplion is $18.00. These options vest over four years - 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
186,606 stock units have been taken up during the year (244,044 to date). Contracts for 184,222 of
these stock units were forfeited to date.

2,635,606 stock option on 1 April 2011. These options expire on 31 March 2018. The exercise price for
the option is $19.20. These options vest over four years — 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
86,528 stock units have been taken up during the year and to date. Contracts for 259,586 of these stock
units were forfeited to date.

1,172,441 stock option on 1 April 2012. These options expire on 31 March 2019. The exercise price for
the option is $26.48. These options vest over four years — 25% each anniversary date of the grant.
Contracts for 70,617 of these stock units were forfeited to date.
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37. Stock Options Reserve (Continued)

Details of the stock options outstanding are as follows:

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

stock exercise stock exercise

options price options price

2012 2012 2011 2011

'000 $ ‘000 $

Balance at beginning of year 12,956 16.54 11,393 16.01
Granted 3.808 21.44 3,138 18.00
Exercised {1,605) 15.68 {1,275) 14.68
Lapsed/forfeited {680) 17.92 {300) 21.75
14,479 17.76 12,956 16.54

Exercisable at the end of the year 8,384 17.36 6,935 17.41

Stock options outstanding at the end of the year for the company have the following expiry date and exercise

price:
Expiry date Exercise price No. of stock options
2012 2011
31 March 2014 $18.00 2,661,339 2,835,581
31 March 2015 $20.50 2,294,568 2,641,924
31 March 2016 $12.20 3,421,475 4,397,815
31 March 2017 $18.00 2,709,525 3,080,353
31 March 2018 $19.20 2,289,492 -
31 March 2019 $26.48 1,101,824 -
14,478,223 12,955,673

For options outstanding at the end of the year, the exercise price ranges from $12.20 to $26.48 (2011 - $12.20 to
$20.50). The weighted average remaining contractual term to expiry is 3 years (2011 - 3 years).

Options for 1,605,067 stock units were exercised during the current year (2011 — 1,274,942). The weighted
average stock unit price at the date of exercise for oplions exercised during the year was $21.65 (2011 - $14.72).
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37. Stock Options Reserve (Continued)

38.

39,

The stock options reserve balance at the year end represents the accumulated fair value of services provided by
employees in consideration for shares, as measured by reference to the fair value of the shares for outstanding
options. The fair value of the options at the year end is measured at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The
services received and a liability to pay for those services is recognised over the expected vesting period. The
significant inputs into the model were weighted average stock unit prices at the grant date, exercise price shown
above; standard deviation of expected share price returns, option life disclosed above, and annual average risk
free interest rate. The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis of daily stock unit prices over one year.

The company recognised cumulative expenses of $80,551,000 (2011 - $74,255,000) as stock options expense
of which $6,296,000 (2011 - $20,488,000) was recognised in the income statement during the year.

During 2011, the company transferred $22,462,000 of the share option reserve balance to share capital. This
transfer related to the fair value of the options exercised up to 2011. No transfers were done in 2012.

The company provides share grants to executives based on the performance of the Group. Shares granted
during the year were 427,756 and were provided at an average fair value of $26.48 (2011 - 1,353,831, average
fair value of $27). The prices are based on the trading price on the Jamaica Stock Exchange.

Retained Earnings Reserve

Section 2 of the Banking Act of 1992 permits the transfer of any portion of the Bank's net profit to a retained
eamings reserve. This reserve constitutes a part of the capital base for the purpose of determining the
maximum level of deposit liabilities and lending to customers, Transfers to the retained earnings reserve are
made at the discretion of the Board; such transfers must be notified to the Bank of Jamaica.

Transfers to the retained eamings reserve are made at the discretion of the subsidiary’s Board of Directors; such
transfers must be notified to the Bank of Jamaica.

Reserve Fund

This fund is maintained in accordance with the Banking Act 1992 which requires that a minimum of 15% of the
net profit of the banking subsidiary as defined by the Act be transferred annually to the reserve fund until the
amount of the fund is 50% of the paid-up share capital of the subsidiary, and thereafter 10% of the net profit until
the amount of the fund is equal to the paid-up capital of the subsidiary.

The deposit liabilities of the company and other indebtedness for borrowed money together with all interest
accrued should not exceed twenty times its capital base.
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40. Loan Loss Reserve

This is a non-distributable reserve representing the excess of the provision for credit losses determined using the
Bank of Jamaica’s regulatory requirements over the amount determined under IFRS,

The loss loan reserve is determined as follows:

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 201
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Provision for credit losses determined under
IFRS -
Loans {Note 24) 215,902 230,315 103,918 108,119
Lease receivables (Note 25) 24,024 20,664 & &
239,926 250,979 103,918 108,119
The provision for credit losses determined
under regulatory requirements -
Specific provision 393,593 403,025 169,650 173,034
General provision 98,066 97,433 24,138 25,824
491,659 500,458 193,788 198,858
Excess of regulatory provision over IFRS
provision reflected in a non distributable
loan loss reserve 251,733 249,479 89,870 90,739

41, Capital Redemption Reserve

The capital redemption reserve was created on the redemption of preference shares in conformity with the
provisions of the Jamaican Companies Act. The preference shares were fully redeemed in 2011.
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42. Fair Value Reserve

This represents the unrealised surplus or deficit on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments and the
unamortised gain relating to securities reclassified to held-to-maturity in current year, The interest rate swap was
closed during the year and the related hedging reserve was transferred to the income statement.

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Available-for-sale investments 184,012 814,978 47,913 618,718
Unamortised gain - hedging reserve
{Note 22) - 39,897 - 39,897
Unamortised gain - reclassified investments
{Note 21) 69,353 78,725 69,353 78,725
253,365 933,600 117,266 737,340
43, Dividends
The Group and The
Company
2012 2011
$'000 $’000
First interim dividend — 74.3 cents (2011 — 62 cents) 410,244 340,713
Second interim dividend — 57 cents (2011 - 66 cents) 314,723 364,171
724,967 704,884

The dividends declared for 2012 and 2011 represented a dividend per stock unit of $1.313 and $1.28, respectively.
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44. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Market price is used to determine fair value where an active market
(such as a recognised stock exchange} exists as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.
However, market prices are not available for a significant number of the financial assets and liabilities held and
issued by the Group. Therefore, for financial instruments where no market price is available, the fair values
presented have been estimated using present value or other estimation and valuation techniques based on market
conditions existing at the statement of financial position dates.

The values derived from applying these techniques are significantly affected by the underlying assumptions used
concerning both the amounts and timing of future cash flows and the discount rates. The following methods and
assumptions have been used:

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
{vi)

(vii)

Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value by reference to quoted
prices when available. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated on the basis
of pricing models, or discounted cash flows. Fair value is equal to the carrying amount of these items;

Investment securities classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer quotes when available. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
based on pricing models or other recognised valuation techniques. Investments in unit trusts are based on
prices quoted by the fund managers.

The fair value of the interest rate swap is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The fair value of currency forward contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates. The fair
value of the equity indexed options and the exchange traded funds that are shorted are based on quoted
prices. The fair value of the cross currency swap is based on the present value of the net future cash
payments and receipts, which fluctuate based on changes in market interest rates and the euro/U.S. dollar
exchange rate.

The fair value of demand deposits and customer accounts with no specific maturity is assumed to be the
amount payable on demand at the statement of financial position date. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest bearing deposits, disclosed below, is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new
deposits.

The fair value of variable rate financial instruments is assumed to approximate their carrying amounts;
Loans are net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans, disclosed below, represents the

discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value; and

Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are recognised at cost less impairment.
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44. Fair Value of Financial Instruments {Continued)

The table below summaries the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not
presented on the Group and company’s statement of financial position at their fair value:

The Group
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
2012 2012 2011 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Investment securities — held-to-
maturity 1,853,904 2,023,535 1,715,800 1,879,981
Loans, net of provision for credit
losses 9,330,364 10,123,910 9,242,365 9,424,309
Financial Liabilities
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 57,595,878 57,650,536 54,612,131 55,064,909
Customer deposits and other accounts 11,215,194 12,347,688 10,599,897 10,061,772
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 468,746 480,614 764,018 789,400
The Company
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
2012 2012 2011 2011
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Investment securities — held-to-
maturity 1,853,904 2,023,535 1,715,800 1,879,981
Loans, net of provision for credit
lasses 2,217,601 2,322,354 2,289,038 2,382,115
Financial Liabilities
Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 56,839,727 56,834,221 54,630,650 55,083,471
Customer accounts 171,152 178,611 250,241 205,740
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 241,464 236,345 464,329 450,425
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44.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments {Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured in the statement of
financial position at fair value at 31 December 2012, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable:

(i) Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

(i) Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices); and

(i} Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs}.

Financial Assets
Trading securities
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Pledged assels

Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Financial Assets
Trading securities
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Pledged assets

Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

The Group
2012

Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
50,022 4,070,997 374,413 4,495,432
- 50,724,835 2,606,904 53,331,739
- 4,253,104 - 4,253,104
- 3,943,434 - 3,943,434
50,022 62,992,370 2,981,317 66,023,709
- 4,310,566 - 4,310,566

The Group

2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000
- 202,752 408,188 610,940
- 50,669,331 2,423,257 52,982,588
- 595,192 244,228 839,420
- 7,831,016 - 7,831,016
- 59,188,291 3,075,673 62,263,964
111,498 589,102 - 700,600
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44,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial Assets
Trading securities
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Pledged assets

Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Financial Assets
Trading securities
Investment securities
Derivative financial instruments
Pledged assets

Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

The Company
2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
50,002 4,070,997 374,413 4,495,412
- 43,887,424 2,606,904 46,494,328
- 4,253,104 - 4,253,104
- 3,667,204 - 3,657,204
50,002 55,868,729 2,981,317 58,900,048
- 4,310,566 - 4,310,566

‘The Company

2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 202,752 408,188 610,940
- 44,633,519 2,423,257 47,056,776
- 595,192 244,228 839,420
- 7.831,016 - 7,831,016
- 53,262,479 3,075,673 56,338,152
111,498 589,102 - 700,600

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the year.
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44. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of level 3 items -

The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

$'000 $°000 $°000 $’000
Balance at beginning of year 3,075,673 2,782,072 3,075,673 2,782,072
Total gain - other comprehensive income 2,452 57,138 2,452 57,138
Total gain — income statement 221,935 110,971 221,935 110,971
Acquisitions - 473,801 - 473,801
Disposals {318,743) (348,309) (318,743) {348,309)
Balance at end of year 2,981,317 3,075,673 2,981,317 3,075,673

The gains or losses recorded in the profit or loss are included in Note 8.

45, Assets under Administration

The Group and the company provide custody, trustee, corporate administration, investment management or
advisory services to third parties which involve these subsidiaries making allocation and purchase and sale
decisions in relation lo a wide range of financial instruments. Those assets are not included in these financial
stalements. As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the company had financial assets under administration of
approximately $40,683,377,000 (2011 - $22,303,873,000) and $40,317,544,000 (2011 - $21,925,817,000)

respectively.
46. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a) Legal proceedings

The company and its subsidiaries are subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings, in the normal
course of business. Provision is made for such matters when, in the opinion of management and its legal
counsel, it is probable that a payment will be made by the Group, and the amount can be reasonably

estimated.

In respect of claims asserted against the Group which have not been provided for, management is of the
opinion that such claims are either without merit and can be successfully defended:; the total of these claims is

US$9,500,000.

{b) Commitments

The tables below show the contractual expiry by maturity of the Group’s and company's contingent liabilities

and commitmenits.
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46. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Continued)

{b} Commitments (continued)

The Group
No later than 1to 5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
At 31 December 2012 $'000 $'000 $’000 $°000
Loan commitments 160,938 1,282,141 77,470 1,520,549
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 382,971 417,504 32,882 833,447
Operating lease commitments 120,935 403,373 60,955 585,263
664,844 2,103,108 171,307 2,939,259
At 31 December 2011
Loan commitments 312,961 284,572 98,805 696,338
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 628,241 417,099 33,399 1,078,739
Operating lease commitments 110,415 348,232 39,967 498,614
1,051,617 1,049,903 172,171 2,273,691
The Company
No later
than 1to 5 Over$§
1 year years years Total
At 31 December 2012 $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
Loan commitments 40,001 882,851 - 922,852
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 293,317 29,758 21,315 344,390
Operating lease commitment 49,755 177,044 - 226,799
383,073 1,089,653 21,315 1,494,041
At 31 December 2011
Loan commitments 27,821 231,145 8,032 266,998
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities 545,276 43,946 24,152 613,374
Operating lease commitment 47,082 165,858 - 212,940
620,179 440,949 32,184 1,093,312

Lease payments, including maintenance, for Group during the year were $112,975,000
{2011 - $97,978,000).
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47. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The tables below show an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered
or seltled. The financial statement areas shown below only reflect assets and liabilities that combine current and
non-current balances.

2012
The Group The Company
Non-
ASSETS Current Non-Current Total Current Current Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trading securities 2,238,835 2,256,597 4,495,432 2,238,834 2,256,598 4,495,432
Investment securities and
pledged assets 8,937,924 51,470,176 €0,408,100 6,862,452 45,237,679 52,100,131
Derivative financial instruments 1,913,200 2,339,904 4,253,104 1,913,200 2,339,904 4,253,104
Loans, net of provision for credit
losses 5,531,947 3,798,417 9,330,364 1,634,098 583,503 2,217,601
Lease receivables 34,923 24,236 59,159 = 5 S
Deferred income tax assets 11,595 42,370 53,965 5,000 23,025 28,025
The Group The Company
Non-
LIABILITIES Current Non-Current Total Current Current Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 57,566,418 29,460 57,595,878 56,810,267 29,460 56,839,727
Cuslomer deposits and other
accounts 10,424,324 790,870 11,215,194 70,186 100,966 171,152
Structured products 106,775 747,325 854,100 108,775 747,325 854,100
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 199,775 268,971 468,746 142,096 99,368 241,464
Derivalive financial instruments 2,376,749 1,933,817 4,310,566 2,376,749 1,933,817 4,310,566

Deferred income tax liabilities - 230,344 230,344 - 128,595 128,595
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47. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities {Continued)

2011
The Group The Company
ASSETS Current  Non-Current Total Current  Non-Current Total
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Trading securities - 610,940 610,940 - 610,940 610,940
Investment securities and pledged
assets 3,143,800 60,064,380 63,208,180 2,634,674 54,030,734 56,665,408
Derivalive financlal instruments 340,791 498,629 839,420 340,791 498,629 839,420
Loans, net of provision for credit losses 4,950,987 4,291,378 9,242,365 1,432,231 856,807 2,289,038
Lease receivables 254 15,261 15,515 S - -
Deferred income tax assets 7,504 11,831 19,335 5,015 1.519 6,534
The Group The Company
LIABILITIES Current  Non-Current Total Current  Non-Current Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Securities sold under agreements 1o
repurchase 54,602,176 9,955 54,612,131 54,620,696 9,955 54,630,651
Customer deposits and other accounts 9,299,024 1,300,873 10,599,897 85,932 164,310 250,242
Structured products - 274,913 274,913 - 274913 274,913
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 153,581 610,437 764,018 150,195 314,134 464,329
Derivative financial instruments 449,895 250,705 700,600 449,895 250,705 700,600
Deferred income tax liabilities - 544,661 544,661 - 449,184 449,184

48. Subsequent Event

On 12 February 2013 the Government of Jamaica (GOJ) announced a public invitation to participate in its
National Debt Exchange (NDX) programme in respect of specific domeslic debt instruments. The NDX
invoives the voluntary exchange of the majority of the GOJ's existing domestic debt instruments for new debt
instruments having longer maturities and lower coupon interest rates. The Group has agreed to participate in

the programme.

The financial impact of the exchange on stockholders' equity is dependent on how the market prices the new
notes. Assuming the fair value of the new notes is at par, the impact on stockholders’ equity would be a 4.9%
reduction.



